




Financial Highlights I1II
HK$ millions unless stated otherwise

2008 2007

Revenue 1045.3 1251.5

Total operating expenses 819.0 853.8

Operating profit from principal activities

226.3 397.7

Profit attributable to shareholders 172.8 548.1

Earnings per share Hl cents 1Ui 11.1 35.1

Dividend per share HK cents 1LU 8.0 18.0

Dividend payout ratio 72% 51%

No of shares outstanding 1560945596 1560945596

Property plant equipment 4i 502.6 534.2

Investment properties 986.1 1040.1

Available-for-sale financial assets 105.1 292.7

Cash and bank balances 272.0 257.7

Bank loans and overdraft 19.2

Net current assets 310.3 307.8

Net assets 1910.3 2171.6

Return on invested capital 9% 16%

Gearing

SSSSSSS

Corporate Profile àft
SCMP Group Limited SEHK 00583 is the holding company of South China Morning

Post Publishers Limited and other subsidiaries engaged primarily in newspaper and

magazine publishing South China Morning Post the flagship publication is the leading

English language newspaper in Hong Kong with circulation of over 100000 affluent and

influential readers SCMP Group also publishes Chinese language editions of Cosmopolitan

Harpers Bazaar CosmoGiril Automobile Maxim and InSt yle

SCMP 00583

jiooooo LZA PcosmopoIitan
Harpers Bazaar CosrnoGir/ 5t41 llt
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ChairmansStatement I41

In 2008 the SCMP Group faced range of challenges and changes With the departure at the end of

February of Ms Nancy Valiente as Group Chief Financial Officer and Managing Director of the South

China Morning Post assumed an active role working closely with Ms Kuok Hui Kwong and her

management team During this period the Group weathered increasingly challenging economic

conditions which were first felt towards the middle of the year Our business continued to be adversely

affected as the financial crisis escalated in the second half of 2008 Despite these setbacks the Groups

financial health remains sound and we are in strong position to meet the challenges ahead As part of

the initiatives started in 2008 to manage our operating cost structure we shall relocate our offices to

more cost-efficient premises

On the editorial front some of the major achievements during the year include our coverage of the

historic Beijing Olympics on both our print and digital platforms as well as our extensive in-depth

reports that chronicled the transformation and progress of China over the past 30 years As in previous

years our reporters designers and editors held to the highest standards of journalism and won for

themselves many prestigious awards that stand as testament to their professionalism and contributions

to the industry

However the role of media should extend beyond merely reporting on misfortunes and tragedies

Following soon after the devastating earthquake in early May in Sichuan province which our news team

widely reported on we launched the SCMP Homes for Hope Project to help victims in Sichuan rebuild

their homes and hopes for the future We also continued our engagement with the community through

the annual Operation Santa Claus programme organised in conjunction with our partner RTHK Despite

the economic downturn Operation Santa Claus 2008 raised over HK$11 million for 13 charities

Over the past 10 years it has been great privilege for me to have been part of the SCMP story As

step down from my role as Chairman would like to express my deepest appreciation to my fellow Board

members for their unwavering support and guidance over the years also wish to acknowledge and

thank all my colleagues at the SCMP They are an outstanding team of professionals who are passionate

and proud of their trade and love Hong Kong wish them all continuing success in their endeavours and

encourage them to carry on the SCMP tradition of reporting factually without fear or favour

extend very warm welcome to Dr David Pang who succeeds me as Chairman and congratulate

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong on her appointment as Chief Executive Officer Despite the present challenges

brought about by the economic downturn am confident that under their leadership the SCMP Group will

continue to produce many more success stories

Lastly my sincere thanks to our readers advertisers and to you our shareholders for your

encouragement and strong support of the SCMP Group all these years

Thank you

Kuok Khoon Ean

Chairman

March 2009

SCMP Group Annual Report 2008



Chairmans Statement

SCMP$fltfl
LThfl ZAIfl

ESnn

901Ui $B
tJMHctfl

Bf ffi

flfl3 flTV Q3

LtflIU1
ursnw

1tWfl4

SCMPfl$

n4

fl1

SCMP Group Annual Report 2008



New ChairmansStatement tiI11

The year 2008 was difficult time for businesses around the world The SCMP Group which started

in buoyant position at the beginning of the year has felt the effects of the market crunch and like

businesses across the globe acted by enhancing productivity and streamlining its business Management

acted quickly to help steer the Group through the changes dictated by the new economic environment

Amid the tough conditions the Groups flagship product the South China Morning Post retained its firm

commitment to being top quality news service breaking stories and providing topical information on

Hong Kong Greater China and the world The newspaper continues to reinforce the SCMPs position as

trusted resource for the regions movers and shakers

The scmp.com website is rapidly expanding and through its many podcasts and videos of interviews with

some of Chinas biggest thinkers entertainers and business minds is evolving into varied and creative

news hub

Although the year ahead will be one of many challenges the Groups strong brand is helping to attract

advertising revenue and keep circulation figures generally stable The Groups dedicated and expert staff

deserve praise for their role in keeping our products at standard which we can all be proud of

As the new chairman of the SCMP would like to thank fellow board members for their guidance and

support through the years in establishing solid foundation for the SCMP today would also like to

thank the management team for leading the company through the choppy seas of todays economic

climate

look forward to working closely with the board and management to address the tough challenges ahead

and to build the long-term success of the SCMP Group for the future

Dr David Pang

New Chairman

March 2009
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Management Report

The year 2008 was one of great change with historic events for China and the

word taking pace in climate of growing economic uncertainty The news

veered from the Beijing Olympics triumph for China and an event enjoyed all

around the world to the tragedy and despair of the Sichuan earthquake The

election of Americas first black president brought with it fresh hope for global

peace and stability but came as the effects of the global financial downturn

were increasingly being feltaR RJIIt
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Financial Overview
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Circulation
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Advertising

Display

Advertising revenue grew hy per cent dudng the

tiret e..ight months of 2008 hut the fuH force of

the fihancial crisis hit in the last quarter resulong

in 18 per cent quarterly revenue decline Print

reveuue for the toll year dropped per cent

Compared to 2007 Despite the poor market

sentiment many advertisers continued to spend

their promotional hudgets They feduced their

spending in regular print advertising and moved

their budget to sper formats and executions to

stand out from their cornoetitors

Online revenue continued to grow and our major

onlind advertisers remained loyal The hanking

and property sectors were hardekt hit hy the

finanhial crisis hrit revenue tronl the tastiion sector

remained strong

Recruitment

Recruit merit activities in the first five months of

2008 were sthl active hut June saw sudden

drop in oiririg demand ano horn ant and online

aclve rtising were affecterd Recruitment advertising

in lass/f/ed Post was seriously affected with

revenue at 2L per cent below the same period

year earlier .1/r/ I/k ended at per cent helow and

ClassifiedPost.com at per cent helow 2007

The economic situation had smalle impa.ct on

education adie rtising in 1/ri .1/k Print revenue was

per cent cinder 2007 and online revenue was

clown per cent Total revenue was per cent

under 2007
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Special advertising project with

Sun Hung Kais The Cullinan

project that culminated with

VIP event luxurious coffee

table book and sponsorild

supplements in the main paper
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Magazines

Despite the global economic downturn the magazine division continued to perform

well in 2008 with significant revenue growth for SCMP Hearst titles 2008 also

saw exciting milestones with the launch of InSt yle on the Mainland and Harpers

Bazaars 20th anniversary in Hong KongWI SCMP Hearsth11Lrp flff
Harpers Bazaar UA2O

Cosmopolitan

Cosmopolitan performed well in 2008 advertising

revenue increased by per cent from last year

Circulation dropped slightly as competition

amongst womens titles remained fierce

Competitors invested heavily on newsstand sales

throughout the year However the retail market

showed signs of shrinkage starting in the fourth

quarter due to the poor economic environment

Harpers Bazaar

2008 was solid year for Harpers Bazaar

Advertising revenue rose 22 per cent over last

year positively affected by the continuation of the

robust economic growth in 2007 and early 2008

This year Harpers Bazaar celebrated its 20th

anniversary in Hong Kong with meaningful and

glitzy charity event party featuring eight unique

pieces of art created by specially invited local

celebrities artists and designers

CosmoGirl

Despite competition from more established titles

circulation maintained respectable ranking

thanks to the strength of the editorial content

In 2008 CosmoGirl focused on reader feedback

which set the groundwork for repositioning in

2009 in terms of content and design targeting

slightly more mature audience

Automobile

The global financial crisis has hit the car magazine

market generally and Automobile has been no

exception All car titles saw declines in advertising

revenue The poor performance of the automobile

retail business has reduced their appetite for

advertising Automobiles advertising income fell

by 20 per cent from last year

Maxim China

The past year proved to be difficult and

disappointing for Maxim Natural disasters and

the Beijing Olympics diverted consumer demand

and key advertisers media investments in mens

titles Entertainment-themed events were deemed

inappropriate and potential sponsors concentrated

their spending on the Games and charity

initiatives Total revenue dropped by per cent

from last year

InStyle China

InStyle was launched in July 2008 Launch

campaigns encompassing above-the-line outdoor

advertising and below-the-line road-shows

helped create InSt yles image of accessible

luxury amongst readers and advertisers Early

support from key clients such as LVMH Chanel

and Emporio Armani has successfully laid the

groundwork for further growth

20 SCMP Group Annual Report 2008
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Board of Directors

Non-executive

Directors

SSSSS
Dr David Pang

Aged 65 Chairman

Appointed in December 2007

Dr Pang was appointed Non-executive Director of the Company in December 2007 and became the

Non-executive Chairman in January 2009 He has been director of Kerry Holdings Limited substantial

shareholder of the Company since 15 March 2007 Dr Pang also serves on the board of Visa Inc listed

on the New York stock exchange He previously held senior global business management positions with

multinational corporations and taught at universities in North America and Asia Dr Pang served as

Chief Executive Officer of the Airport Authority Hong Kong from January 2001 to February 2007 after

successful career with the conglomerate E.l DuPont where he was Corporate Vice President in charge

of DuPont worldwide nonwovens business and Chairman DuPont Greater China During his career with

DuPont Dr Pang held number of progressively senior positions across various DuPont businesses and

with responsibilities spanning the Asia Pacific North America Europe and South America since 1980

EItt

t-J1I
Holdings Limitedi tiiiVisa Inc

itLdtI
Mr Roberto Ongpin

Aged 72 Deputy Chairman

Appointed/n October1993

Mr Ongpin was appointed as the Deputy Chairman of the Company in October 1993 He is Non-

executive Director of Shangri-La Asia Limited listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited He

is also the Chairman of PhilWeb Corporation and ISM Communications Corporation Vice Chairman of

Philex Mining Corporation and Director of Petron Corporation all of which are listed companies on

the Philippine Stock Exchange Inc He is also director of Araneta Properties Inc and Chairman of

the following companies Eastern Telecommunications Philippines Inc ETPI Alphaland Corporation

Developing Countries Investment Corp and La Flor de La Isabela Inc He was director of E2-Capital

Holdings Limited listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited until June 2008 Prior to 1979

Mr Ongpin was the Chairman and Managing Partner of the SGV Group the largest accounting and

consulting firm in Asia He was the Minister of Trade and Industry of the Republic of the Philippines from

1979 to 1986 He has an MBA from Harvard University and is Certified Public Accountant Philippines

Roberto OngpinE

ongpini0iLbItiM 3\PhilWeb corporationISM Communications Corporation IlPhilex

Mining Corporation28lPetrOn Corporation

i\Araneta Properties inc.MJ Eastern Telecommunications Philippines Inc ETPI

Alphaland Corporation Developing Countries Investment Corp.La Flor de La Isabela Incii Ongpin

ssv i\
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Board of Directors

Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng

Aged 70

Appointed in June 1994

Tan Sri Dr Khoo is the Chairman and Chief Executive of The MUI Group which is business corporation

with diversified operations in the Asia Pacific the United States of America USA and the United

Kingdom He is the Chairman and Chief Executive of Malayan United Industries Berhad and MUI

Properties Berhad both listed in Kuala Lumpur Dr Khoo is also the Chairman of Laura Ashley Holdings

plc listed in London Corus Hotels Limited previously listed in London and Morning Star Resources

Limited listed in Hong Kong He is also director of Pan Malaysian Industries Berhad listed in Kuala

Lumpur and The Bank of East Asia Limited listed in Hong Kong Dr Khoo is trustee of the Regent

University Virginia USA and board member of Northwest University Seattle USA He also serves as

Council Member of the Malaysian-British Business Council the Malaysia-China Business Council and the

Asia Business Council

t-71-i

-IYztI
jThe MUI Group2

Malayan United Industries Berhad MUl Properties Berhad ti3

f/1J\Laura Ashley Holdings plc J1i Corus Hotels Limited

Jjlj t\Pan Malaysian Industries Berhad

University1 Universityt
/lJ\Malaysian-British Business Council Malaysia-China Business CouncilAsia Business CounciI

Mr Kuok Khoon Ean

Aged 53

Appointed/n October1993

Mr Kuok was appointed Chairman of the Company in January 1998 and became an Executive Director

in January 2000 and assumed the role of Executive Chairman in August 2000 until his re-designation as

Non-executive Director in January 2009 He is director of Kerry Group Limited the ultimate holding

company of the Company and Kerry Holdings Limited substantial shareholder of the Company
Mr Kuok is Chairman of Shangri-La Asia Limited listed in Hong Kong and Singapore He is also

director of The Post Publishing Public Company Limited and Wilmar International Limited listed in

Thailand and Singapore respectively Mr Kuok is also an independent non-executive director of The Bank

of East Asia Limited listed in Hong Kong He is graduate in Economics from Nottingham University

UK Mr Kuok is the brother of Ms Kuok Hui Kwong the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of

the Company

-7f1J/I
fiKerry Group Limited

Kerry Holdings Limited2M

/tIThe Post Publishing Public Company Limited tdiWilmar International Limited JUL1i Nottingham
University
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Board of Directors

independent

Non-executive

Directors

..SSSS

The Hon Ronald Arculli

CBS CVO OBE JP

Aged 70

Appointed in June 1996

Mr Arculli is the Independent Non-executive Chairman of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited

listed in Hong Kong He was the Chairman of The Hong Kong Jockey Club from 2002 to August 2006

Mr Arculli is practising solicitor and was an elected member of the Legislative Council until the end

of the legislative session at the end of June 2000 He had served on the Legislative Council and the

Provisional Legislative Council since 1988 representing the Real Estate and Construction functional

constituency since 1991 Mr Arculli has served and continues to serve on numerous Government

committees and advisory bodies including Committee on the Review of Post-service Outside Work for

Directorate Civil Servants The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited and West Kowloon Cultural

District Authority He is currently Member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong Mr Arculli is an

independent non-executive director of Hang Lung Properties Limited and non-executive director of HKR

International Limited Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited Sino Hotels

Holdings Limited 5mb Land Company Limited and Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited all listed in Hong

Kong He was an independent non-executive director of Shanghai Century Acquisition Corporation listed

on the American stock exchange

CBS CVO OBE 5-i72$f

-Y7YI _jii9R tt8

5ftLLfPdirtiJI
Mr Peter Lee Ting Chang

JP

Aged 55

Appointed in August1998

Mr Lee is Chairman of Hysan Development Company Limited and non-executive director of Cathay

Pacific Airways Limited CLP Holdings Limited and Hang Seng Bank Limited all listed in Hong Kong

He is also director of Maersk China Limited as well as director of number of other companies He is

Vice President of the Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong Mr Lee is graduate in Civil

Engineering from the University of Manchester and also qualified as Solicitor of the Supreme Court of

England and Wales

-Ii1/1
University of Manchesteri7tI
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Board of Directors 11

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok P0

GBM GBS OBE MA Caritab Economics Law Hon DSc Imperial Hon OBA Napier Hon

D.Hum.Litt Trinity USA Hon DSocSc Lirignan Hon LLD Hong Kong Hon LLD Warwick Hon LLD

Cantab FCA FCPA FCPA Aust FC/B FHKIB FBCS C/TP FC/Arb JP Officier de Ordre de Ia Courorine

Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of/ta/ian Solidarity The Order of the Rising Sun Gold Rays with

Neck Ribbon Officier de Ia Legion dHonneur

Aged 70

Appointed in April1990

Sir David is Chairman and Chief Executive of The Bank of East Asia Limited listed in Hong Kong and

director of numerous other companies in Hong Kong and overseas Sir David is Member of the

Legislative Council of Hong Kong He is the Chairman of The Chinese Banks Association Limited and the

Hong Kong Management Association He is also member of the Banking Advisory Committee and the

Council of the Treasury Markets Association Sir David is an independent director of China Overseas Land

Investment Limited COSCO Pacific Limited Guangdong Investment Limited The Hong Kong and China

Gas Company Limited The Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels Limited PCCW Limited San Miguel Brewery

Hong Kong Limited and Vitasoy International Holdings Limited all listed in Hong Kong He is director

of AFFIN Holdings Berhad and Criteria CaixaCorp S.A listed in Malaysia and Spain respectively Sir David

was an independent director of AviChina Industry Technology Company Limited and China Merchants

China Direct Investments Limited both listed in Hong Kong and director of Dow Jones Company Inc

listed on the New York stock exchange He was Member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong

GBM GBS OBE MA Cantab Economics Law Hon DSc Imperial Hon DBA Napier Hon

D.Hum.Litt Trinity USA Hon DSocSc Lingnan Hon LLD Hong Kong Hon LLD Warwick Hon

LLD Cantab FCA FCPA FCPA Aust FCIB FHK/B FBCS CITP FCIArb -V$Tt Officier de

Ordre de Ia Couronne Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of/ta/ian Solidarity The Order of the

Rising Sun Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon Officier de Ia Legion dHonneur

t-I-i-1ii1f _j ij/iLrb AFFIN Holdings Berhad

Mi Criteria CaixaCorp S.AtbL$Dow Jones Company Inc

tb
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Board of Directors M$I

Mr Wong Kai Man

BBS IP

Aged 58

AppointedinApril2007

Mr Wong is an accountant with 32 years of audit initial public offer and computer audit experience

He was member of the Growth Enterprise Market Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited from 1999 to 2003 He retired as an audit partner from PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong

Kong on 30 June 2005 and is currently the director of two charity foundations Victor and William Fung

Foundation Ltd and Li Fung 1906 Foundation Limited and an Honorary Associate Professor of the

School of Business of the University of Hong Kong He is currently an independent non-executive director

of China Construction Bank Corporation listed in Hong Kong and Shanghai Shangri-La Asia Limited

listed in Hong Kong and Singapore and SUNeVision Holdings Ltd listed in Hong Kong In addition he

serves in number of government committees and the board of certain non-government organisations

Mr Wong obtained his Bachelor of Science in Physics from the University of Hong Kong and Master of

Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and is fellow of the Association of

Chartered Certified Accountants United Kingdom and fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants

BBS df
1906

Id ftTh

Executive Ms Kuok Hui Kwong

Director Aged 31 Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Appointed in February 2004

Ms Kuok was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in February 2004 and became the

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer in January 2009 She is responsible for overseeing the

management of the Groups businesses and operations Prior to joining the SCMP Group in October 2003

Ms Kuok worked in investment banking She is also director of The Post Publishing Public Company

Limited listed in Thailand Ms Kuok is graduate of Harvard University She is the sister of Mr Kuok

Khoon Ean director of the Company

iiJIASCMP fj03\
The Post Publishing Public Company Limited JiLi
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Corporate Executives AiFAI

SSSSSS

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer SCMP Group Limited

Ms Kuok was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in February 2004 and became the

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer in January 2009 She is responsible for overseeing the

management of the Groups businesses and operations Prior to joining the SCMP Group in October 2003

she worked in investment banking She is also director of The Post Publishing Public Company Limited

listed in Thailand Ms Kuok is graduate of Harvard University

SCMPI1fJiiT$SCMPU
The Post Publishing Public Company Limited Jli
Mr Ponch Poon

Chief Financial Officer SCMP Group Limited

Mr Poon is responsible for financial planning business strategy risk management compliance

management reporting and investor relations Mr Poon joined the Group in September 2008 with over

20 years of financial management experience in Hong Kong Mainland China and Canada He has held

senior financial management roles including Regional CFO of Asia for several multinational companies

Mr Poon is graduate of Canadas Simon Fraser University with double major degree in Business

Administration and Computer Science He is also member of the Association of Certified Management

Accountants

5CMPI c20
Fraser University

J1\Association of Certified Management Accountants

Mr Lau

Editor

Mr Lau joined the SCMP in the early 1980s Before his appointment as Editor in February 2007 Mr Lau

wrote columns and editorials as Executive Editor Policy Mr Lau worked for The Australian in Sydney

the Overseas Chinese Daily and as the Chief Press Information Officer of the Independent Commission

Against Corruption Mr Lau is the SCMP representative on the board of The Newspaper Society of Hong

Kong Mr Lau is graduate of Baptist University and holds Masters degree from the University of

Minnesota

The Australian
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Corporate Governance I1
The Board of Directors the Board and Management are committed

to upholding the Groups obligations to shareholders We regard the

promotion and protection of shareholders interests as one of our

priorities and keys to success

Over the years the Group has put in place sound corporate

governance practices to ensure it adheres to the highest ethical and

business standards The key test of corporate governance practices is

if they align the interests of management with those of shareholders

to adequately protect and promote shareholders interests

The Group constantly reviews these guidelines and policies and

implements new ones to ensure they remain relevant and practical in

todays fast changing business environment and market expectations

During the year the Groups corporate governance practices have

complied with all the code provisions of the Code on Corporate

Governance Practices Stock Exchange Code as set out in Appendix

14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited Listing Rules except for the

deviation that there was no separation between the roles of chairman

and chief executive officer prior to the Companys appointment

of Dr David Pang as the Non-executive Chairman and Ms Kuok

Hui Kwong as the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

with effect from January 2009 The Group also adheres to the

recommended best practices of the Stock Exchange Code insofar as

they are relevant and practicable

The Group believes that its current corporate governance practices

which combine practices which have served the Group well for many

years and new practices set out in the Stock Exchange Code provide

the Group with sound and sensible framework for balancing the

business of the Group and the interests of its shareholders The

Group will continue to evaluate its corporate governance practices

in light of its business needs regulatory changes and new corporate

governance philosophies

Set out below are our current framework of governance and

explanations about how the provisions of the Stock Exchange Code

have been applied

ffVJW2

fl
ffli

flEP Jen2
3PftflfflMJ LLmR Nfl-FPA
2it1ffPftii2PftJW

$fl
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Corporate Governance 15

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ne

The Board recognises its responsibility to represent the interests

of shareholders Currently the Board has nine Directors an

Executive Director and eight Non-executive Directors including four

Independent Non-executive Directors Independent Non-executive

Directors represent more than one-third of the Board

Non-executive Directors

Dr David Pang chairman

Mr Roberto Ongpin Deputy chairman

Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng

Mr Kuok Khoon Ean

independent Non-executive Directors

The Hon Ronald Arculli

Mr Peter Lee Ting chang

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok P0

Mr Wong Kai Man

Executive Director

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong Managing Director and

chief Executive Officer

The biographies of all the Directors including their relationships are

set out on pages 22 to 26 of this Annual Report

The Board is chaired by the Non-executive chairman Dr David

Pang Ms Kuok Hui Kwong Managing Director and chief Executive

Officer oversees the management of the Groups business with the

assistance of the Groups senior management team

Each Director brings wide range and years of business experience

to the Board The Directors combined knowledge expertise and

experience are extremely valuable in overseeing the Groups

business

The Board sets the strategic direction and oversees the performance

of the Groups business and management The following key matters

must be approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf

of the company

Strategic direction

Budgets

Audited financial statements

Interim and final results

Interim and annual reports

Significant investments

Major acquisitions and disposals

Major financings borrowings and guarantees

Material contracts

Risk management

fl flL7M3
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In addition the Board discusses major operating issues evaluates

opportunities and business risks and considers corporate

communications and human resources issues Decisions and conduct

of matters other than those specifically reserved to the Board are

delegated to Management

The Board will review the arrangements between the responsibilities

of the Board and the matters delegated to Management from time to

time to ensure that they remain appropriate to the need of the Group

and its business

Board Proceedings

The Board holds four regular meetings annually usually quarterly

and also meets at such other times as are necessary Agenda of

Board meetings are approved by the chairman and presented to

the Directors for comments The Board is provided with adequate

timely and reliable information about the Groups business and

developments before each Board meeting at which the Directors

actively participate and hold informed discussions All Directors

are asked to review and comment on the Board minutes within

reasonable time after the meetings to maintain accurate records of

Board discussions and decisions

The number of Board meetings held and meetings attended by each

of the Directors during the year were

Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director

Notes

Dr David Pang was appointed as Non-executive chairman of the

company with effect from January 2009

Mr Kuok Khoon Ean stepped down as Executive chairman and was

re-designated as Non-executive Director with effect from January 2009

t9F

fltn

flwt gM$
flll Mfl ZS flfl23
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Meetings held

during 2008

Directors
Meetings attended

Dr David Pang Note cPm
Mr Roberto ongpin Roberto ongpin9fE

The Hon Ronald Arculli

Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong

Mr Kuok Khoon Ean Note Itvj2
Mr Peter Lee Ting Changt

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok Po

Mr Wong Kai Man
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All the Directors have access to the advice and services of the

Company Secretary to ensure all board procedures are followed

Before each Board meeting the Directors update the Board regarding

offices held in public and private companies and organisations There

are also written procedures for the Directors to obtain independent

professional advice at the Companys expense

The Board has also adopted specific procedures for meetings to be

convened among Non-executive Directors including the Independent

Non-executive Directors in the absence of any Executive Director

Appointment Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board confirms the term of appointment and functions of all

Non-executive Directors and Board Committee members with formal

letters of appointment

Directors who are appointed to fill vacancies are subject to

re-election at the first annual general meeting of the Company after

his or her appointment In addition every Director including every

Non-executive Director shall retire from office no later than the third

annual general meeting after he was last elected or re-elected One-

third of the Directors be they Executive Directors or Non-executive

Directors are required to retire by rotation from office at every

annual general meeting under the Companys Bye-Laws retiring

Director is eligible for re-election

Directors Remuneration

The Directors fees and all other reimbursements and emoluments

paid or payable to the Directors during the year are set out on an

individual and named basis in note 20 to the financial statements of

this Annual Report on page 113

The remuneration policy of the Group is set out on page 115 of this

Annual Report

Securities Transactions of Directors and Senior Executives

The Board of Directors had adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers Model code as set

out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Companys code for

securities transactions by its Directors and senior executives

All Directors of the Company have confirmed their compliance with

the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year

Interests in the Companys shares including share options held by

the Directors as at 31 December 2008 are set out in the Directors

Report section of this Annual Report on pages 52 to 54

ff2flR It9F
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Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Board has received from each of the Independent Non-executive

Directors confirmation of his independence according to the

guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

The Board is of the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors

of the Company are independent and is grateful for the contribution

and independent advice and guidance that they have been giving to

the Board and the Board Committees

Other matters relating to the Board

In relation to financial reporting all Directors acknowledge their

responsibilities for preparing the accounts of the Group

The Group has appropriate insurance in place to cover the liabilities

of the Directors and senior executives of the Group

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year the Board was chaired by the Executive Chairman

Mr Kuok Khoon Ean No individual was appointed as chief executive

officer The Executive Chairman was responsible for overseeing

the management of the Board and the Groups business with the

assistance of the Groups senior management team The Executive

Chairman was responsible for overseeing the overall management of

the Group Other functions normally undertaken by chief executive

officer of company were delegated to members of the Groups

senior management team Such structure deviated from the relevant

code provision of the Stock Exchange Code that requires the roles

of the chairman and chief executive officer to be separate and not

performed by the same individual

With effect from January 2009 Mr Kuok Khoon Ean stepped down

as Executive Chairman and was re-designated as Non-executive

Director Dr David Pang was appointed the Non-executive

Chairman of the Company and Ms Kuok Hui Kwong was appointed

the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company

This segregation provides clear distinction between the roles of

the chairman and the chief executive officer The Non-executive

Chairman is responsible for the management of the Board to

ensure that the Board is functioning properly whilst the Managing

Director and Chief Executive Officer is responsible for overseeing

the management of the Groups businesses and operations Their

respective responsibilities are clearly established and set out in

writing

Thnfl
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Remuneration and Nomination $ffiTflIT
Committees with mandates to deal with certain corporate governance

aspects of the Group The remits of these committees are published www.scmpgroup.com

on the Companys website www.scmpgroup.com

From time to time the Board also establishes other board

committees to deal with specific aspects of its business

Each committee is appointed with written terms of reference and

each member of the committee has formal letter of appointment Et
setting out key terms and conditions relating to his appointment

Each Committee meets as frequently as required by business

developments and the operation of the Group Committee members

are provided with adequate and timely information before each

meeting or discussion All Committee members are asked to review

and comment on the minutes of their meetings within reasonable

time after the meetings

The procedures and arrangements relating to the meetings of the

Board are applied to meetings of the Board Committees whenever it

is appropriate

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1998 The members of the

Committee are Messrs Peter Lee Ting Chang as Committee Chairman

Ronald Arculli David Li Kwok P0 and Wong Kai Man who are all

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Committee members have professional qualifications and

experience in financial matters that enable the Committee to exercise

its powers effectively and provide the Board with independent views

and recommendations in relation to financial matters

The principal roles of the Audit Committee are to ensure that the

Company has formal and transparent arrangements for considering

matters relating to the Groups financial reporting and internal

controls and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the

Companys internal and external auditors

The duties of the Audit Committee as set out in its terms of

reference adhere to the code provisions of the Stock Exchange Code
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The Audit committee holds two regular meetings annually and also

meets at such other times as are necessary Any Audit committee

member may convene meeting of the Committee The external

auditor may also request the Committee chairman to convene

meeting of the Audit Committee The Audit Committee may invite

the external auditor and/or members of Management to attend any

of the meetings Special meetings may be called at the discretion

of the Committee Chairman or at the request of Management to

review significant internal control or financial issues The Committee

Chairman reports to the Board at least twice year on the

Committees activities and highlights any significant issues

The number of meetings of the Audit Committee held and attended

by each of the Audit Committee members during the year were

fl1Afl t2Ifflff4t

9flT

Meetings held

during 2008

Directors Meetings attended WTJ .$

is

Mr Peter Lee Ting Chang

The Hon Ronald Arculli W19E
Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok P0

Mr Wong Kai Man

Key matters reviewed by the Audit Committee during the year were

Audited financial statements

Final and interim results

Report from the external auditor on the audit of the Groups

accounts

Re-appointment of the external auditor

External auditors audit service plan

Internal control report

Internal audit report

Compliance report

During the year the Board has not taken any view that is different

from that of the Audit Committee nor rejected any recommendation

presented by the Audit Committee

flflflTJfl

9b2tt
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Remuneration Committee fltfl

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2000 majority

of its current members are Independent Non-executive Directors

The members of the Committee are Messrs Peter Lee Ting Chang as

Committee Chairman Ronald Arculli and Kuok Khoon Ean

The Committee determines the remuneration packages of Executive

Directors and senior management of the Group The Committee also

gives recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of Non-

executive Directors The Committee reviews human resources policies

of the Group including retirement benefits and share options under

the Companys Share Option Scheme

JtfllWfltflL
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The duties of the Remuneration Committee as set out in its terms of

reference adhere to the code provisions of the Stock Exchange Code

The Committee meets once year and at such other time as is

necessary Any Committee member may convene meeting of the

Remuneration Committee

The number of meetings of the Remuneration Committee held and

attended by each of the Remuneration Committee members during

the year were

u21gu

fl

Meeting held

during 2008

Directors Meeting attended Tfl

Mr Peter Lee Ting Chang

The Hon Ronald Arculli

Mr Kuok Khoon Ean

Key matters reviewed by the Remuneration Committee during the

year were

Groups remuneration policy

Remuneration package of Executive Directors

Remuneration of Non-executive Directors

Remuneration package of senior management

Remuneration package of key editorial functions

Performance and membership of the Groups retirement plans

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2005 majority of

its current members are Independent Non-executive Directors The

members of the Committee are Messrs Peter Lee Ting Chang as

Committee Chairman Ronald Arculli and David Pang

Prior to the establishment of the Nomination Committee the Board

was responsible for agreeing to the appointment of its members

and nominating them for election and re-election by the Companys

shareholders

The remit of the Nomination Committee is to identify candidates

for appointment to the Board and to review the size structure and

composition of the Board Before an appointment is made the

Nomination Committee evaluates the balance of skills knowledge

and experience on the Board and in the light of this evaluation

prepares description of the role and capabilities required for

particular appointment If deemed appropriate external consultants

may be used to identify suitable candidates

The duties of the Nomination Committee as set out in its terms of

reference adhere to the recommended best practices of the Stock

Exchange Code

oWcp
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The Nomination Committee meets at such time as the committee

chairman shall require Any Committee member may convene

meeting of the Nomination committee

The number of meetings of the Nomination committee held and

attended by each of the Nomination Committee members during the nT
year were

Meeting held

during 2008

Directors Meeting attended

Mr Peter Lee Ting Chang

The Hon Ronald Arculli

Mr Kuok Khoon Ean Note Ji
Dr David Pang Note clJ1 f2

Notes

Mr Kuok Khoon Ean ceased to be Nomination committee member with

effect from January 2009

Dr David Pang was appointed as Nomination Committee member with

effect from January 2009

During the year the Nomination committee reviewed the size

structure and composition of the Board and made recommendations

to the Board on the appointment of new director and re-election of

retiring directors of the company

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Management Committee is chaired by the Managing Director

and Chief Executive Officer and composed of senior executives of the

Group and heads of the Groups divisions Meetings are held regularly li

to

Ensure business activities are coordinated and profitable

Evaluate business and operating risks

Review and propose strategic plans to achieve long-term growth

and profitability

Discuss major operating issues

Review and approve major expenditures

Approve partnerships ventures and significant disposal of assets

Each of the Groups divisions also holds weekly or bi-monthly

operational meetings with minutes of meetings circulated to the

Management Committee
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INTERNAL CONTROLS Ig
I7
0P

The Group has established internal controls in all material aspects

of its business including financial operational compliance and risk

management functions These internal controls are intended to

safeguard the shareholders investments and the Groups assets

To the extent relevant the Groups internal control framework

uses aspects from the United Kingdoms Turnbull Guidance and the

internal control and risk management framework proposed by the

Hong Kong Institute of certified Public Accountants checklist

based on the checklist proposed by the United Kingdoms Turnbull

Guidance has been drawn up by the Company to assist the Directors

in their review of the Groups internal control system

The responsibilities for maintaining the Groups internal controls

are divided between the Board and Management The Board is

responsible for setting and reviewing internal control policies to

monitor the Groups internal control systems The Board delegates

the implementation of these policies to Management Management

is responsible for identifying and evaluating the risks faced by the

Group and for designing operating and monitoring an effective

internal control system which implements the policies adopted by the

Board

The company established an internal audit function in 2005 Audit

plans risk assessments and regular internal audit reports are

presented to and reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board of

Directors

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the Groups systems

of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness Preliminary

reviews of the Groups financial controls internal control and risk

management systems prior to formal reviews by the Board have

been delegated to the Audit Committee in accordance with its terms

of reference The Audit committee reviews the Groups financial

controls internal control and risk management systems at its regular

Audit committee meetings It should be noted however that while

sound and well-designed system of internal control helps to provide

reasonable safeguards to assist the Group in achieving its business

objectives the system itself cannot provide protection with certainty

against the Group failing to meet its business objectives or against all

material errors losses fraud or breaches of laws or regulations For

this reason the Boards review of the internal controls should not

be treated as an absolute assurance that one of the risks mentioned

above would not materialise

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Groups material

controls including financial operational and compliance controls

and risk management functions as well as the adequacy of resources

qualifications and experience of staff of its accounting and financial

reporting function and their training programmes and budget during

the year and considered the Groups system of internal controls to be

effective
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers was first appointed as the Groups external

auditor in 2001

During the year PricewaterhouseCoopers provided the following

audit and non-audit services to the Group

$ftflflEfl29H

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

TTA

External audit 2957 3071

Tax services 417 428

Other advisory services 509 299

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and offer themselves for

re-appointment at the annual general meeting of the company to be

held in May 2009

statement by PricewaterhouseCoopers about their reporting

responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in

the Independent Auditors Report section of this Annual Report on

pages 62 to 63

CODE OF CONDUCT

We pride ourselves on our integrity and ethical standards Our

reputation is priceless business asset and fundamentally depends

on the fair and honest practices of all employees We have adopted

company code of conduct code of conduct to ensure that all

Directors managers and employees act with integrity Employees

are expected to share the responsibility of maintaining the Groups

reputation and their own by performing their duties with objectivity

accuracy fairness and by strict compliance with all relevant laws of

any applicable jurisdiction and the Code of conduct Journalists are

also expected to comply with the Hong Kong Journalists Associations

Code of Ethics

The Group has adopted Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and

Investigation which sets out specific procedures facilitating whistle-

blowing reports and investigation thereof

ffTh263 1fli
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SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

All of the Companys shares are ordinary shares carrying equal voting

rights As at the date of this Annual Report sufficient shares of the

Company were on public float as required by the Listing Rules

The Board and Management recognise their responsibility to look

after the interests of the shareholders of the Company Shareholder

relations play an integral part in corporate governance The Group

keeps shareholders informed of its performance operations and

significant business developments by adopting transparent and

timely corporate disclosure policy which complies with the Listing

Rules and provides all shareholders equal access to such information

We report on financial and operating performance to shareholders

twice each year through annual and interim reports We give

shareholders the opportunity to raise concerns or propose

recommendations to the Board at the Companys annual general

meetings representative of the Companys external auditor is

requested to attend the annual general meetings to answer questions

about the external audit and the audit report Shareholders may visit

our website www.scmpgroup.com for up-to-date financial and other

information about the Group and its activities

The Legal and Corporate Secretarial Department and Corporate

Communications Department respond to enquiries from shareholders

and other interested parties throughout the year They also present

to the Board any enquiry addressed to the Board by any shareholder

Their contact details are set out in the Corporate Information

section of this Annual Report on page 142 and our website

www.scmpgroup.com

The Company promotes fair disclosure of information to all investors

and care is taken to ensure that analyst briefings and other

disclosures made by the Company comply with the Listing Rules

prohibition against selective disclosure of price sensitive information

In addition to statutory reporting obligations the Group provides

timely information about corporate affairs by issuing press releases

through the Corporate Communications Department

From 1990 to 2008 all annual and special general meetings of

shareholders held by the Company were attended by the then

incumbent chairman of the Board

Shareholders have specific rights to convene special general meetings

under the Companys Bye-Laws shareholder or shareholders

holding not less than one-tenth of the Companys shares may require

the Directors to convene special general meeting of the Company

by depositing signed requisition at the registered office of the

Company stating the purpose of the meeting Up to the date of

this Annual Report no shareholder has requested the Company to

convene special general meeting
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Any shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the

total voting rights of all the shareholders having the right to vote at

general meeting or not less than one hundred shareholders may

by written requisition given to the Company not less than six weeks

in case of requisition requiring notice of resolution or one week

in case of any other requisition before the general meeting move

resolution at the general meeting

The company held an annual general meeting in May 2008 during

which matters including the payment of final dividend re-election

of retiring Directors authorisation of the Board to fix Directors fee

re-appointment of external auditor and grant of general mandate

for the issuance and repurchase of Company shares by the Group

were presented for shareholders approval During the annual

general meeting details of the poll voting procedures and the rights

of shareholders to demand poll were set out in the circular to

shareholders and read out at the meeting All proposed resolutions

were voted by poll and approved by the shareholders present at the

meeting The results of the shareholders votes were published in the

newspaper the following business day

The Companys next annual general meeting will be held on 25 May

2009 at Island Ballroom Level Island Shangri-La Hotel Pacific

Place Supreme court Road Hong Kong
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue from continuing operations

Operating profit from principal activities

from continuing operations

Profit attributable to shareholders

Earnings per share

Total dividend per share

$1037.8 million

$227.6 million

$172.8 million

$0.11

$0.08

1037.8 M3Y

227.6 M3YE
172.8

0.11

0.08

OPERATING RESULTS OF THE GROUP

The Groups consolidated operating results for the years ended 31

December 2008 and 2007 were as follows

tRLZtLiEE IL2

For the year ended 31 DecemberESth
HK$ millions except per share amounts 2008 2007 Changeflflfl9A flk flt$

Restated

ThW
Continuing operations Th1MM
Revenue 1037.8 1231.7 16

Staff costs WIn$ 355.4 382.8

Production costs tZZ 164.9 172.0
Rental and utilities 41.2 40.4
Advertising and promotions 38.0 29.7 28

Other operating expenses 156.9 154.6

Operating costs before depreciation and amortisationg2zz 756.4 779.5

Depreciation and amortisation 53.8 57.3

Operating profit from principal activities 227.6 394.9 42
Other income 11IA 5.7 4.7 21

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assetsfflgfl 1.4 100
Fair value loss/gain on investment properties

19RflW1 E/fl 81.2 266.3

Operating profit SlJ 152.1 667.3 77
Net interest income 3W1A 2.2 6.7 67
Share of profits of associates 1.2 3.4 65
Deferred tax on fair value changes of investment propertiest2 13.4 45.0
Taxation 35.0 73.7 53

Profit from continuing operations 133.9 558.7 76
Discontinued operations B1%JJJMM
Net gain from discontinued operations 51.4 2.1

Profit for the year 185.3 560.8 67
Minority interests 12.5 12.7

Profit attributable to shareholders flQt4ItiJ 172.8 548.1 68

Earnings per share HK cents fl9O lIUJ 11.1 35.1 68

Represents an increase/a decrease in excess of 100% iflll7fl11oo%
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Profit attributable to shareholders dropped $375.3 million or 68% to

$172.8 million 2008 results included revaluation loss on investment

properties net of deferred tax of $67.8 million compared with gain

of $221.3 million in 2007 contribution from newspaper publishing

also decreased due to significant drop in notices advertising

following the change in listing rules in 2007 and the volatile stock

market and recruitment advertising as many companies hold back

their recruitment plans in the second half year amid the global

financial crisis During the year the Group has suspended its book

publishing business and disposed of its music publishing and video

and film post-production businesses The Group recognised gain on

disposal of $52.4 million The lower profit of the year together with

the change in profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% reduced the tax

expenses excluding deferred tax on fair value changes of investment

properties by $38.7 million

Revenue

The consolidated revenue for the years ended 31 December 2008 and

2007 by business segment and for the Group were as follows

_flT\

aWfl1fl67.8fl7u

jnmtnnflflTfl BBflttfThfltBHfl

A2fltA flBflWUW1
Ts2.4Y2

17.s%16.s%
138.7M37c

HK$ millions
2008 2007 Change

ªfl
Continuing operations I$M
Newspaper publishing IWt 851.3 1056.4 19

Magazine publishing
154.5 139.0 11

Book publishing BWII 4.5 16.7 73

Investment properties
27.5 19.6 40

1037.8 1231.7 16

Discontinued operations B%thM
Video and film post-production

5.3 16.5 68

Music publishing WII 2.2 3.3 33

7.5 19.8 62

Total revenue 1045.3 1251.5 16
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Operating Costs and Expenses

Operating costs and expenses for the years ended 31 December 2008

and 2007 were as follows

staff costs decreased 7% or $27.4 million mainly due to lower year-

end bonus and higher income from the defined benefit retirement

scheme Production costs dropped 4% or $7.1 million because of

lower newsprint consumption and lower production costs resulting

from the suspension of book publishing business Average newsprint

usage in 2008 dropped 13% Although the average newsprint cost for

the year rose 9% from us$616 to us$671 per metric ton purchase

price began to drop in the last quarter of 2008 due to drastic drop

in demand The latest market price of 45gsm is us$648 per metric

ton which dropped 25% from the previous quarter Advertising and

promotion expenses increased 28% or $8.3 million mainly for the

launch of new magazine title in china during the year

IT4BHt$ZZfl4%7.1Mt
RWtT13%
616ft9%671MT WW452flafl
mJ648Y frfl2s%

HK$ mU/ions 2008 2007 changeºM
Continuing operations t4M
staff costs It 355.4 382.8

Production costs tQ 164.9 172.0

Rental and utilities 41.2 40.4

Advertising and promotions 38.0 29.7 28

Other operating expenses 156.9 154.6

Depreciation and amortisation 53.8 57.3

810.2 836.8

Discontinued operations B%th1cMM
Video and film post-production W%ifl1F 7.3 16.0 54
Music publishing MWt 1.5 1.0 50

8.8 17.0 48

Total operating costs and expenses 819.0 853.8
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Operating profit from principal activities and EBITDA tfiIlI32i

Operating profit and EBITDA for the years ended 31 December 2008

and 2007 by business segment and for the Group were as follows

IEBITDAJ OT

Contribution to operating

profit from principal

activities

Contribution to EBITDA

EEBITDA2W$X

HK$ millions 2008 2007 change 2008 2007 change

Nt5 flA Tflt flft flk$ Lflt flB1
Continuing operations Th1M
Newspaper publishing WJt 234.7 413.3 43 182.4 357.3 49
Magazine publishing iWt 24.6 30.4 19 23.1 29.2 21

Book publishing SWt 0.5 6.2 92 0.5 6.3 92
Investment properties t9R4 22.6 14.7 54 22.6 14.7 54

281.4 452.2 38 227.6 394.9 42
Discontinued operations BA%JJiM
Video and film post-production

2.0 0.7 2.1 0.6

Music publishing WI 0.8 2.2 64 0.8 2.2 64

1.2 2.9 1.3 2.8

Total hl4- 280.2 455.1 38 226.3 397.7 43

Represents an increase/a decrease in excess of 100%

FINANCIAL REVIEW BY BUSINESS

Publishing Wlt

HK$ millions 2008 2007 ChangeªM flk
Revenue

Newspaper publishing EHfl 851.3 1056.4 19
Magazine publishing ftffl 154.5 139.0 11

Book publishing S1It 4.5 16.7 73

Total 1t 1010.3 1212.1 17

EBITDA 258.8 437.5 41
Operating profit from principal activities 205.0 380.2 46
Net profit 3W 166.0 315.0 47
EBITDA margin WJS 26% 36%

Operating margin from principal activities 20% 31%

Publishing revenues dropped 17% and accounted for 97% of total WJT17% 2EBlTDA
revenue of the Group EBITDA and operating margin from principal

activities went down due to the loss of high margin notices revenue
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Based on the un-audited circulation figures for the second half

of 2008 the average circulation of South China Morning Post

and Sunday Morning Post dropped 1% and 2% respectively when

compared to same period last year Subscription and airline copies

increased but retail copies continued to drop in line with industry

trend in 2008

SCMP$

2WIT1%2%

SMPI1H

Audited except 2H 2008 figures

Display advertising revenue dropped 4% as sales in the last quarter

of the year were affected by the global financial crisis The decline in

newspaper ad sales was partly compensated by higher revenue from

the special executions customised publishing and the Post Magazine

Advertisers were more willing to promote their products through

creative ad products rather than regular print

Recruitment advertising revenue dropped across all products by

$54.1 million Recruitment activity started to slow down since June

as result of the worsening US economy and further deteriorated

due to the broke out of the global financial crisis in September lot

more companies have frozen hiring activities or are very cautious in

managing hiring costs

Notices revenue dropped $127.1 million of which IPO related revenue

dropped $72.4 million while result and other notices dropped $54.7

million

Revenue from IPO dropped owing to the unfavorable market

conditions which resulted in companies either postponing or

canceling their listing plans Although we maintained our market

share at 93% IPO revenue dropped significantly when compared to

last year owing to fewer IPOs and smaller revenue size for each IPO

Revenue from result and other corporate announcements dropped as

the first and second phase implementation of new listing rules took

effect in June and December 2007 respectively Hence 2008 result

reflected the full year impact after the change of the rules

Post

MagazineEftU

F54.1M
Th

T127.1
72.4

Lfrm-t-t
m193%

101782
104552 102102 103516 102520

100004
103964 104415

106054 107080
96389

82208 81453 80124 81935 80620

78362 81099 80498 80865 81827

2003 2004 2005 2006 0007 2008

8T- eT$ c8-T0 tT
2003 oooa 2005 2006 2007 2008
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Revenue from Magazine Division grew 11% to $154.5 million

Advertising sales from Cosmopolitan and Harpers Bazaar remained

strong despite the fierce competition on newsstands which has

led to lower circulation revenue Net profit from Magazine Division

was lower mainly because of the investment on Instyle magazine

launched in china during the year

Investment Properties

211%154.5M
Cosmopolitan Harpers Bazaar

fflSt fAt2flfl

HK$ millions 2008 2007 Change

EM4 U$
Revenue 27.5 19.6 40

EBITDA 22.6 14.7 54

Operating profit from principal activities 22.6 14.7 54

Net loss/prof it 3W 1/J 44.6 233.4

Represents decrease in excess of 100%

Net loss for the year included revaluation loss on investment itl
properties net of deferred tax of $67.8 million whereas there was

revaluation gain of $221.3 million in 2007 Rental income increased ttAiflD4o%
40% due to higher contributions from Bank of America Tower and

the billboards in Leighton Road

Discontinued operations

During the year the Group has disposed of its Music Publishing and

Video and Film Post-Production businesses and recorded gains on

disposal of $47.3 million and $5.1 million respectively

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Groups main source of liquidity is recurring cash flows from

the publishing business which is supplemented from time to time by

committed banking facilities The Groups financial position as at 31

December 2008 and 2007 were as follows

HK$ millions 2008 2007 change

ªit $S
Cash and bank balances 272.0 257.7

Bank overdraft 19.2 100
Shareholders funds 1910.3 2171.6 12

Ratios th
Gearing Rflth
Current ratio h1t 2.5 2.4

During the year the Group has fully repaid the bank overdraft The

Groups cash and bank balances are held predominantly in Hong

Kong dollars and the Group has no significant exposure to foreign

exchange fluctuations

flBflflJ5
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As at 31 December 2008 the Group had no gearing after deducting

bank balances and deposits The ratio of current assets to current

liabilities was 2.5 times

The Group expects its cash and bank balances cash generated from

operations and funds available from external sources to be adequate

to meet its working capital requirements finance planned capital

expenditures and pay dividends

Operating Activities

The newspaper publishing business was the major source of the

Groups cash flow from operating activities Net cash generated

from operating activities for the year was $252.2 million compared

with $373.2 million for the same period last year The lower cash

inflow was caused by the drop in notices and recruitment advertising

revenues

Investment Activities

Net cash inflow from investing activities for the year was $41.1 million

compared with an outflow of $20.6 million in 2007 The major cash

inflows for the current year include net proceeds from the disposal

of subsidiaries of $51.4 million capital expenditure for the year was

$17.8 million mainly on office refurbishment computer equipment

and system enhancement

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities for the year was $259.8 million

comprising dividend payments of $249.8 million to shareholders of

the company $9.0 million to minority shareholder and interest

payment on bank overdraft of $1.0 million

Zfl
2flth MhRfltfl2thfl2.5

Zflf5flS2Zfl

%hi2flfl2s2.2M ffi373.2fl

2A3fl41IEK
51.4flY k$17.8Mt5tft

fl249.8Mt5 9.oªMiu
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OUTLOOK

There will be tough challenges ahead of us this year due to the

poor global economic outlook Compared with the previous year

the recruitment advertising market has already shrunk by more

than 60% in the first two months of 2009 In the area of display

advertising we foresee more significant drop about 30% amongst

sectors like luxury brands banking and investment and hospitality

In 2009 we will focus on driving for greater efficiency and to reduce

costs significantly in the areas of staffing production newsprint

and marketing spend to maintain decent level of profitability

and cash flow in this tough economic environment In addition to

cost saving initiatives the Group will also aggressively pursue new

revenue opportunities through the introduction of new products

and exploration of new market segments including as Healthcare

Education etc. With the volatility in the current economy we will

adopt more disciplined approach towards business investment

Special attention will be put on risks and liquidity management to

ensure minimal impact on the Companys assets especially the cash

position of the Company

Risks always present opportunities as well We will be focused on

identifying opportunities to make positive changes in 2009 to better

prepare the Group for long-term growth and future success These

changes will include enhancing efficiency and effectiveness in our

operations repositioning our business markets and products for

growth and to drive for culture of excellence with more customer

focus and accountability to meet our future business and customers

needs

28J36o%

dE1tr

-Lf1E11E

flIffJ
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the

audited financial statements of SCMP Group Limited the Company

and its subsidiaries collectively the Group for the year ended 31

December 2008

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company The principal

activities of the Group during the year comprised the publishing

printing and distribution of the South C/i/na Morning Po5t Sunday

Morning Post and other print and digital publications The Group was

also involved in property investment The Group disposed of its video

and film post-production and music publishing businesses during the

year

An analysis of the Groups performance for the year by business

segment is set out in note to the financial statements

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year whilst the Group purchased more than 30% of

its goods from its five largest suppliers sales to the five largest

customers accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the

year

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to

the Groups major suppliers and customers are as follows

Purchase

the largest supplier

five largest suppliers combined

Silchester International Investors International Value Equity Trust

shareholder who owned more than 5% of the Companys share

capital as at 31 December 2008 informed the Company that as at 31

December 2008 it had an interest in related company of one of the

abovementioned five suppliers

Save from the above and as far as the Directors are aware neither

the Directors their associates nor shareholders who own more than

5% of the Companys share capital as at 31 December 2008 had any

interest in the five largest suppliers and customers

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The profit of the Group for the year and the state of affairs of the

Company and the Group as at 31 December 2008 are set out in the

financial statements on pages 64 to 68

SCMP1i1i RE9W

EO
I1J ffllj

f30%fli

30%2tU
4.11%

16.75%

Silchester International Investors International Value Equity Trust

Sales

the largest customer

five largest customers combined

20.65%

64.67%

4.11%

16.75%

20.65%

64.67%
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DIVIDEND

During the year an interim dividend of HK6 cents 2007 HK8 cents

per share was paid The Directors recommend the payment of final

dividend of HK2 cents 2007 HK1O cents per share in respect of the

year ended 31 December 2008 to the shareholders whose names

appear on the register of members of the company on Friday 22 May

2009

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 141

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES

Movements in the property plant and equipment and details of

investment properties of the Group are disclosed in note and note

to the financial statements respectively

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the companys principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2008 are set out in note 33 to the financial statements

ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Groups principal associates as at 31 December

2008 are set out in note 33 to the financial statements

BANK OVERDRAFT

Particulars of bank overdraft of the Group as at the balance sheet

date are set out in note 19 to the financial statements

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the authorised and issued share capital of the Company are

set out in note 14 to the financial statements

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the reserves of the company available for distribution to

shareholders as at 31 December 2008 are set out in note 15 to the

financial statements

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Companys

Bye-Laws or the laws in Bermuda which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on pro rata basis to existing shareholders

nQj

61ffl 84ffliThE
iojJ
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the company are disclosed in note 15

to the financial statements Movements in the reserves of the Group

are disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on

page 66

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year the Group made charitable donations totaling

HK$996162

WI

15

nfl

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of

this report were

Non-executive Directors

Dr David Pang chairman

Mr Roberto Ongpin Deputy chairman

Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng

Mr Kuok Khoon Ean

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Hon Ronald Arculli

Mr Peter Lee Ting Chang

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok P0

Mr wong Kai Man

Executive Director

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong Managing Director and

chief Executive Officer

With effect from January 2009 Mr Kuok Khoon Ean stepped down

as Executive chairman and was re-designated as Non-executive

Director of the company Dr David Pang was appointed the Non-

executive chairman of the company and Ms Kuok Hui Kwong was

appointed Managing Director and chief Executive Officer of the

company The Board would like to record note of special thanks

and appreciation to Mr Kuok Khoon Ean for all his effort and

contributions during his tenure as the chairman of the company

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the companys Bye-Laws Messrs

Khoo Kay Peng Kuok Hui Kwong and David Li Kwok P0 shall retire

by rotation and are eligible for re-election at the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting of the company

2Zt3T

Etl1
Roberto ongpinet itl

nfl
tMfl

ISflS$fl
Lfl7tS L$4ffWfll
vten

UBt
jff
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DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SHARES UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2008 the Directors of the Company had the

following interests or short positions in shares underlying shares and

debentures of the company and its associated corporations within

the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance the

SF0 as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section

352 of the SF0 or as notified to the Company and the Hong Kong

Stock Exchange the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies the

Model Code or as otherwise notified to the Company

Company

T\TE 352
2JfJffPJf 1$
uj rftj

xvB
flT

Approximate

of issued

Capacity Number of ordinary share capital

Name of Director Nature of interests shares held 4IER1
th

Mr Kuok Khoon Ean Corporate 3400001 0.02%

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok P0 Personal 1ILAS 4778000 O.31%

ii Associated Corporations

Number of

underlying

ordinary shares

Number of held under Approximate

ordinary equity derivatives of issued

Name of Associated Capacity/Nature shares held share capital

Corporation Name of Director of interests Total J1ER1
l/1It iUF flQth

Kerry Group Limited Mr Kuok Khoon Ean Corporate 51973807 51973807 3.40W

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong Family/Other 238999882 23899988 1.56%6

Kerry Properties Limited Mr Kuok Khoon Ean Corporate 1283082 1283082 0.09%

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong Family/other 1252048 300000k 1552048 0.11%

Notes

This represents deemed corporate interests held by Mr Kuok Khoon Ean

through Allerlon Limited which is wholly owned by Mr Kuok and his

spouse

This includes 1000000 shares held by the spouse of Ms Kuok Hui

Kwong and 22899988 shares held by Ms Kuok through discretionary

trust of which she is contingent beneficiary

AIIerton Limited 1ZWf
Allerlon Limited

Z2ioooooo
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This represents interests held by Ms Kuok Hui Kwong through

discretionary trust of which she is contingent beneficiary

This represents interests in share options held by the spouse of

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong to subscribe for the relevant underlying ordinary

shares of Kerry Properties Limited details of which are set out in the

section headed Directors rights to acquire shares or debentures

below

Approximate percentage calculated based on the 1560945596 ordinary

shares of the company in issue as at 31 December 2008

Approximate percentage calculated based on the 1527684428 ordinary

shares of Kerry Group Limited in issue as at 31 December 2008

Approximate percentage calculated based on the 1427189759 ordinary

shares of Kerry Properties Limited in issue as at 31 December 2008

All the interests stated above represent long positions in the shares

of the company or its associated corporations

Apart from the aforesaid as at 31 December 2008 none of the

Directors of the company had any interest or short position in any

shares underlying shares and debentures of the company or any

associated corporations within the meaning of the 510 as recorded

in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SF0 or as

otherwise notified to the company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model code

DIRECTORS RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

A2t2fft12PR MflliT 2fJ

TjE-j-iiiEH- 21560945596

t1 tlO18Kerry Group LimitedCTVTn 52
1s27684428BMf5Mt

r\ifJE
1427189759EW2t$

tLfifffl% CflT\EH-ThE-frS
%3s22WJaflftPA ent

flP1ff $$ ff1Of3I
2llQJ

MflQffI1$tfl2WtJ

Company àJ
None of the Directors including their spouses and children

under 18 years of age had been granted by the company or had

exercised any rights to subscribe for shares or debentures of the

company during the year ended 31 December 2008

ii Associated Corporation

The spouse of Ms Kuok Hui Kwong was granted share options

KPL Options to subscribe for shares in Kerry Properties

Limited an associated corporation of the company within the

meaning of the SF0 during the year ended 31 December 2008

Details are set out as follows

1$t$
H-RAT2 $eGff1ifl

ii OLt

RE-hLfrEH-SThf i2
fl$fli 3Ifl 2fS tEnT

Number of KPL Number of KPL

Options held as at Number of KPL Options held as at

01/01/2008 Options granted 31/12/2008 Exercise price/

ttZTTk during the year share

n--H fit$IgW -l-ZE-f-fl HK$

Date of grant Th14Ifl Exercise periodWM
02/04/2008 300000 300000 47.70 Tranche 75000 02/04/2009-01/04/2018

Tranche II 75000 02/04/2010-01/04/2018

Tranche Ill 150000 02/04/2011-01/04/2018

PE
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Save as stated above at no time during the year ended 31 December

2008 was the Company its subsidiaries its fellow subsidiaries or

its holding companies party to any arrangement to enable the

Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in

or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2008 the following persons other than the

Directors of the company had interests or short positions in the

shares and underlying shares of the company representing 5% or

more of the voting power at any general meeting of the company as

recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the

SF0

iThE81t

J336
E9ftP fAiff5%LZ

Approximate

Number of of issued

Capacity/ ordinary share capital7

Name Nature of interests shares held

/1l1II

Kerry Group Limited Interest of controlled 1155061308 74.00%

corporations

Kerry Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 1155061308 74.00%

corporations

Kerry 1989 C.I Limited Interest of controlled 10787173082 69.11%

corporations

Kerry Media Limited Beneficial owner 1078717308 69.11%

Silchester International Investors Limited4 Investment manager 219485000 14.06%

Silchester International Investors International Beneficial owner 11433163456 7.32%

Value Equity Trust

Notes

The interests in the 1155061308 shares held by Kerry Holdings Limited

are duplicated in the interests reported above for Kerry Group Limited

The interests in the 1078717308 shares held by Kerry 1989 c.I

Limited are duplicated in the respective interests reported above for

Kerry Group Limited and Kerry Holdings Limited

The interests in the 1078717308 shares held by Kerry Media Limited

are duplicated in the respective interests reported above for Kerry Group

Limited Kerry Holdings Limited and Kerry 1989 C.l Limited

Investment manager acting on behalf of clients and not connected with

the Company

Kerry Holdings

Kerry Group Limited2

Kerry 1989 ci
Kerry Group LimitedKerry Holdings

Kerry Media JI321t
Kerry Group Limited Kerry Holdings LimitedKerry 1989 CI Limited
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The company has been notified informally that as at 31 December 2008

silchester International Investors International Value Equity Trust was

interested in 111375634 shares representing approximately 7.14% of

the companys issued share capital and this decrease in shareholding

was not required to be disclosed under Part XV of the SF0

The interests held by silchester International Investors International

Value Equity Trust are duplicated in the interests reported above for

silchester International Investors Limited

Approximate percentage calculated based on the 1560945596 ordinary

shares of the company in issue as at 31 December 2008

All the interests stated above represent long positions in the shares

of the company

Save as stated above as at 31 December 2008 the company had not

been notified of any interests and short positions in the shares and

underlying shares of the company which had been recorded in the

register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SF0

$fliE3%l R-4-LE-I-9 Sllchester

International Investors International value Equity Trustft111375634

B5flJ7.14%
W1IJ%xvEBffiWfl

sllchester International Investors International value Equity Trustflf

rni1iSiIchester International Investors Limited2V

flJ\E 921560945596

tLPftfl9

336 I2WJBftff

SHARE OPTION SCHEME ftUQtHttJ

It is part of the Groups policy to reward employees for their past

contributions to the Group and motivate them to optimize their

future contributions and enable the Group to attract and retain

individuals with experience and ability

During the year the company had share option scheme the

Scheme which was approved at the annual general meeting of

the company held on 25 May 2006 the Adoption Date Under the

Scheme the Board of Directors of the company the Board may

grant options to subscribe for shares of the company to any full-

time employee or Executive Director of the company or any of its

subsidiaries the Executive

The subscription price of the options pursuant to the Scheme shall

not be less than whichever is the highest of the nominal value

of share of the company ii the closing price of share of the

company as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange

on the date of the Boards approval of grant of the option the Offer

Date and iii the average of the closing prices of share of the

company in the Stock Exchanges daily quotation sheets for the five

business days immediately preceding the Offer Date An offer of the

grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance by the Executive

concerned at no consideration for period of 28 days from the date

on which an option is offered to the Executive

Zfl1ffl2
at

$iThUfltt 1MPH fli
fLH-9 18i 2ffflt

9$Mt fl1fli$1tES 2ff VW5fl U51ZAi RMIQfl

i$W
iizgsttjHgnatR 14ffl

Si lfw9nPft2umM iii$1
nfljH PAW
110 fl29ML-hR fl
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Under the scheme no option may be exercised earlier than one year

after it has been granted or later than ten years after the Adoption

Date i.e 25 May 2016 The remaining life of the scheme is up to 25

May 2016 The maximum number of shares of the company which

may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the

scheme when aggregated with shares to be issued upon exercise

of options granted under any other share option scheme of the

company may not exceed 10% of the shares of the company in issue

as at 25 May 2006 As at the date of this report the total number

of shares available for issue under the scheme was 156094559

representing approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the

company as at the date of this report

The maximum number of shares of the company issued and to be

issued upon exercise of the options granted to any one Executive

including exercised and outstanding options under the scheme

in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the

company in issue from time to time

None of the substantial shareholders of the company has been

granted any share option under the scheme None of the suppliers

of goods or services to the Group has been granted any share

option under the scheme No participant of the scheme has been

granted share options in excess of the maximum entitlement of each

participant

During the year no share option was granted exercised cancelled or

lapsed under the scheme No share option was outstanding under the

scheme as at 31 December 2008

DIRECTORS INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors of the company has any interest in business

which competes or is likely to compete with the business of the Group

during the year

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance in relation to the Groups business to

which the company or any of its subsidiaries was party and in

which Director of the company had material interest whether

directly or indirectly subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year

DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed to be re-elected at the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group

which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation

ElttiT ffla9fl-hSRflLtLH-9f5

2LPZff1tUfti21t
AH-BBJ5210%
2fl156094559

Rgfl 52afl lTh%M5

2flttT2fffltT2ff4Lfl

51-

2mff1J

flfictJSflj
rTht2flMg
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was

entered into or existed during the year

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year the Company and its subsidiaries had certain related

party transactions as disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements

which also constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules

Certain subsidiaries of the Company had the following connected

transactions and continuing connected transactions with subsidiaries

of Kerry Group Limited substantial shareholder of the Company as

defined in the Listing Rules Details of the transactions are set out

below

Transactions in respect of the financial year ended

31 December 2008

Connected Transactions

An agreement dated 27 December 2007 made

between South China Morning Post Publishers Limited

SCMPP wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

and Kerry Properties Limited Kerry Properties

which is subsidiary of Kerry Group Limited whereby

SCMPP was engaged to publish two issues of The Dress

Circle magazine for Kerry Properties

Under the above agreement A1a the service fee

was determined based on the editorial cost project

management cost printing and other production costs

involved in providing the services maximum total

service fee of HK$1500000 average HK$750000 for

each issue was payable by Kerry Properties to SCMPP

The above agreement A1a has been fully performed

with two issues of the magazine published in June 2008

and December 2008 respectively Total aggregate

sum received or receivable pursuant to the agreement

amounted to HK$1280000

if P2

TiA
LbU Kerry

Group Limited

Kerry Group Limitedfi tt93t ittri

u1Iw

ffl 1aB
1280000
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An agreement dated March 2008 made between

SMPP and Kerry Real Estate Agency Limited

KREAL subsidiary of Kerry Properties whereby

scMPP was engaged to publish premium booklet for

KREAL

Under the above agreement A1b the service fee was

determined based on the editorial cost and production

cost involved in providing the services An estimated

total amount of service fee of HK$870500 would be

payable by KREAL to ScMPP

The premium booklet was not published during the

year KREAL had paid to ScMPP preliminary service fee

amounted to HK$421481 during the year

continuing connected Transactions

An agreement dated 27 December 2007 made between

SMPP and Kerry Holdings Limited Kerry Holdings

subsidiary of Kerry Group Limited whereby 5cMPP

agreed to provide classified advertising and corporate

notices services to Kerry Holdings and Kerry Group

Limited and its subsidiaries and associates as defined

in the Listing Rules Kerry Group for the period

from January 2008 to 31 December 2008

An agreement dated 27 December 2007 made between

5MPP and Kerry Holdings whereby ScMPP agreed to

provide display advertising services to Kerry Holdings

and other companies in the Kerry Group for the period

from January 2008 to 31 December 2008

An agreement dated 27 December 2007 made between

ScMPP and the advertising agent of Shangri-La

International Hotel Management Limited an indirect

wholly-owned subsidiary of Shangri-La Asia Limited

SA and SA is an associate as defined in the Listing

Rules of Kerry Group Limited whereby ScMPP agreed

to provide advertising services to Shangri-La hotels

and resorts for the period from January 2008 to 31

December 2008

The service fees payable pursuant to the above agreements

A2a to A2c were payable in cash or by cheque by

the end of the month following the month in which SMPP

issued invoices

The aggregate amount of service fees received or receivable

pursuant to the above agreements A2a to A2c for

the financial year ended 31 December 2008 amounted to

HK$2217610

W2flftM
1tttft CflR1EEE9JtLfl

2flflUiU

fl
ffl421481t5

tfl
hE It Kerry Holdings Limited IKerry

Holdings Kerry Group Limited2flW VL
tH-ThLtSflfl ittnr

lôKerry HoldingsKerry Group

Limited NIiWWflA Jr
IKerry Group

fflXKerry Holdings

Kerry HoldingsKerry

HiLW4PR
4fl P91 1tt 2r

1fl11L J3Kerry Group

Limited2flA Lib2$ttC
ntmLH-tagrnfla ilt

fEH-Bit
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In accordance with Rule 14A.37 chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules the Directors including Independent Non-executive

Directors of the company have reviewed the above

continuing connected transactions the Transactions and

confirm that the Transactions were entered into

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the

Group

on normal commercial terms and

in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the company as whole

The Auditor of the company has also reviewed the

Transactions and confirmed to the Directors in writing that

the Transactions have been approved by the Board of

Directors of the company

the Transactions are in accordance with the pricing

policy of the Group

the Transactions have been entered into in accordance

with the relevant agreements governing the

Transactions and

the aggregate amount received under the above

agreements A2a to A2c for the financial year

ended 31 December 2008 does not exceed the annual

cap of HK$7 million as stated in the companys

announcement dated 27 December 2007

Transactions in respect of the financial year ending

31 December 2009

connected Transaction

An agreement dated 17 February 2009 made between

scMpp and Kerry Properties whereby SCMPP will publish

three issues of The Dress circle magazine for Kerry

Properties

Under the above agreement the service fee was determined

based on the editorial cost project management cost

printing and other production costs involved in providing

the services maximum total service fee of HK$2300000

approximate average HK$766700 for each issue will be

payable by Kerry Properties to ScMPP

4ffiU14A14A.37 1i

RJJL

2Jl
ZffJ

RRiL2a2cti

fflffltE

EU22300000
WiE7667oo3
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Directors Report It

continuing Connected Transaction

An agreement dated 19 December 2008 made between

SCMPP and Kerry Holdings whereby SCMPP agreed to

provide advertising services to Kerry Holdings and other

companies in the Kerry Group for the period from January

2009 to 31 December 2009

The service fees payable pursuant to the above agreement

are payable in cash or by cheque by the end of the month

following the month in which SCMPP issued invoices

The Company expects that the maximum aggregate amount

of service fees receivable under this agreement for the

financial year ending 31 December 2009 will be HK$6

million as stated in the Companys announcement dated 19

December 2008

All the above connected transactions and continuing connected

transactions have been disclosed in accordance with Rules 144.32

and 14A.35 Chapter 144 of the Listing Rules respectively

PURCHASE SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANYS

SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased sold

or redeemed any of the Companys shares during the year

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted the Model Code

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers the Model

Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for

securities transactions by Directors of the Company All Directors

of the Company have confirmed their compliance with the required

standard set out in the Model Code during the year

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard

of corporate governance Details of the Companys corporate

governance practices are set out in the Corporate Governance

section of this Annual Report on pages 28 to 40

PUBLIC FLOAT

Immediately upon the close of the mandatory conditional offer made

by Kerry Media Limited the Offeror on 25 February 2008 the

public float of the Company had fallen below 25% At the request of

the Company trading in the shares of the Company was suspended

as from 27 February 2008

WffiKerry Holdings

Kerry

HoldingsKerry Group

LLE-h

U14A

2cOEU2
U1UiZU

2840Z

Kerry Media Limited ZJMftR8
25%
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Directors Report

On 27 February 2009 the Offeror entered into sale and purchase

agreements with J.P Morgan Securities Ltd JPMorgan Securities

Deutsche Bank AG DB and The Bank of East Asia Limited BEA
respectively pursuant to which the Offeror agreed to sell and each

of JPMorgan Securities DB and BEA agreed to purchase 75000000
shares of the company the Sale details of which are set out in

the Offerors announcement dated 27 February 2009 Immediately

following completion of the Sale on 27 February 2009 the public

float of the Company was restored to 25.12062% Trading in the

shares of the Company was resumed as from 230 p.m on March

2009 Details of the public float arrangements have been disclosed in

the Companys announcements dated March 2008 15 April 2008

July 2008 24 July 2008 10 September 2008 10 December 2008

March 2009 and March 2009

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and being eligible offer

themselves for re-appointment

On behalf of the Board

David Pang

Chairman

Hong Kong 30 March 2009

1MAJ.P Morgan Securities Ltd

fJPMorgan securitiesj Deutsche Bank AG IDBif5i
JPMorgan Securities

J75000O00 A9
I25.12o62%

RT\EER i\--9
r\ttL9
E8ZJ

ZBPfr
ff3 ff
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Independent Auditors Report

PRCEWATERHoUSECmPE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SCMP GROUP LIMITED

incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SCMP

Group Limited the Company and its subsidiaries together

the Group set out on pages 64 to 140 which comprise the

consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008

and the consolidated income statement the consolidated statement

of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the

year then ended and summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory notes

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation

and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial

statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance This responsibility includes designing

implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to

the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement whether due

to fraud or error selecting and applying appropriate accounting

policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion

solely to you as body in accordance with section 90 of the

Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose We do not

assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards

on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants Those standards require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement

SCMP
JAT 11f1i B6414oSCMPP9 1T1i

1j9U1t

1BU5

itfitJ1- PricewaterhouseCoopers

22nd Floor Princes Building

Central Hong Kong

Telephone 852 2289 8888

Facsimile 852 2810 9888
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Independent Auditors Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence

about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements The procedures selected depend on the auditors

judgment including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether

due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments the auditor

considers internal control relevant to the entitys preparation and

true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the entitys internal control An audit also

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by

the Directors as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide basis for our audit opinion

OPINION

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give true and

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as

at 31 December 2008 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group

for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong 30 March 2009

Pftt

4r11

BUffWR1I

1t
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Audited Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 1R
As at 31 December 2008 iEB

2008 2007

Notes HK$OOO HK$OOO

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property plant and equipment 502580 534154

Investment properties 986100 1040100
Lease premium for land it 13969 31588

Intangible assets 24729 29542

Interests in associates 10 53334 55888

Available-for-sale financial assets 11 105074 292722

Defined benefit plans assets WttJ2 28a 60104 47808

1745890 2031802

Current assets

Inventories 12 38904 23076

Accounts receivable 13 187428 231304

Prepayments deposits and other receivables

23411 16330

Cash and bank balances 31d 272015 257685

521758 528395

Total assets 2267648 2560197

EQUITY

Capital and reserves

Share capital 14 156095 156095

Reserves 1722944 1859438

Proposed dividend 31219 156095

15a 1754163 2015533

Shareholders funds 1910258 2171628

Minority interests 20114 16567

Total equity 1930372 2188195

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities 17 125861 151408

125861 151408

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 18 142466 153402

Subscriptions in advance 24550 25795

Current income tax liabilities 44399 22225

Bank overdraft secured 19 19172

211415 220594

Total liabilities 337276 372002

Total equity and liabilities 2267648 2560197

Net current assets 310343 307801

Total assets less current liabilities 2056233 2339603

Dr David Pang Ms Kuok Hui Kwong

Chairman Director
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Audited Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007

Notes HK$OOO HK$OOO

Restated

Note

Continuing operations

Revenue 1037774 1231734

Other income 1tPA 5684 4732

Staff costs 20 355409 382829

Cost of production materials 164919 171998

Rental and utilities 41177 40438

Depreciation and amortisation 53807 57313

Advertising and promotion 38036 29670
Other operating expenses 156829 154586

Fair value loss/gain on investment properties j/i 81150 266300

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assetsfflw 1370

Operating profit 21 152131 667302

Net interest income UtA 22 2141 6697

Share of profits of associates 1187 3380

Profit before income tax $fiJ 155459 677379

Income tax expense 23 21557 118747

Profit for the year from continuing operations 133902 558632

Discontinued operations EflJ.E$ 24

Profit for the year from discontinued operations 51413 2131

Profit for the year 185315 560763

Attributable to f4
Shareholders 25 172768 548084

Minority interests 12547 12679

185315 560763

Dividends 26 124876 280971

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted 27

Continuing operations 7.78 cents J1 35.12 cents 1LIJ

Discontinued operations 3.29 cents 1J 0.01 cents 1W

11.07 cents Ii 35.11 cents 31LJJ
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Audited Financial Statements IUM

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY IIWIh
Year ended 31 December 2008

Attributable to shareholders

Share capital

and share Investment Asset Total

premium Contributed revaluation revaluation Translation Retained shareholders Minority

surplus reserve reserve reserve profits funds interests Total equityLU li
HK$000 HK$OOO HK$OoO HK$oOO HK$000 HK$OOO HK$000 HK$oOo HK$OOO

Balance at January 2007

197066 865672 159802 3624 29105 685696 1882755 11832 1894587

Available-for-sale financial assets

ffl2P
Fair value gain taken to equity

67139 67139 67139

Transfer to profit or loss on

disposal

1218 1218 1218

Exchange differences on consolidation

2667 2667 144 2523

Net income recognised directly

in equity 65921 2667 68588 144 68444

Profit for the
year 548084 548084 12679 560763

Total recognised income for the year

65921 2667 548084 616672 12535 629207

Dividends 327799 327799 7800 335599

Balance at 31 December 2007

197066 865672 225723 3624 26438 905981 2171628 16567 2188195

Balance at January 2008

197066 865672 225723 3624 26438 905981 2171628 16567 2188195

Available-for-sale financial assets

Fair value loss taken to equity

188422 188422 188422

Translation reserve released

on disposal of subsidiary

594 594 594

Exchange difference on consolidation

2455 2455 2455

Fair value
gain arising from

reclassification of leasehold land

to investment properties

Wi 8436 8436 8436

Deferred taxation directly charged

to equity

1351 1351 1351

Net loss recognised directly in equity

188422 7085 3049 184386 184386

Profit for the
year 172768 172768 12547 185315

Total recognised expense/income for

the year

f/t7\ 188422 7085 3049 172768 11618 12547 929

Dividends 249752 249752 9000 258752

Balance at 31 December 2008

i\E-l-9 197066 865672 37301 10709 29487 828997 1910258 20114 1930372
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Audited Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007

Notes HK$OOO HK$OOO

f1t

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 31a 278478 511831

Hong Kong profits tax paid 26121 138269

Overseas tax paid 160 353

Net cash generated from operating activities 252197 373209

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property plant and equipment and intangible assets

fA4JJt Jf 17785 18617

Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets 17763

Interest received B1IJ 3279 7799

Dividends received from B1
Listed investments Jm 2566 2368

Associates 1559 3957

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale financial assets

fflZPfri 1609

Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipmentW4 71 63

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 31b 51421

Net cash generated from/used in investing activities 41111 20584

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of long-term bank loans 31c 17000

Repayment of short-term bank loans 31c 1990

Dividends paid to minority shareholder of subsidiary

31c 9000 7800
Dividends paid 26 249752 327799

Interest paid R1tU 1054 1894

Net cash used in financing activities 259806 356483

Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents

33502 3858

Cash and cash equivalents at January 238513 242371

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

272015 238513

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances 31d 272015 257685

Bank overdraft 19172

272015 238513
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Audited Financial Statements

BALANCE SHEET I41R
As at 31 December 2008 iER

EQUITY

Capital and reserves

Share capital 14

Reserves

Proposed dividend

Total equity 1385357 1359857

Dr David Pang

Chairman

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong

Director

2008 2007

Notes HK$OOO HKV000

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Interests in subsidiaries 1384747 1359248

Current assets

Cash and bank balances 31d 610 609

Total assets 1385357 1359857

156095 156095

15b

1198043 1047667

31219 156095

1229262 1203762
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Audited Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MII4
Corporate information J4
The company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted

company with limited liability Its principal place of business is

Morning Post Centre 22 Dai Fat Street Tai P0 Industrial Estate

New Territories Hong Kong

The Company acted as an investment holding company during

the year The principal activities of the Group during the year

comprised the publishing printing and distribution of the South

China Morning Post Sunday Morning Post and other print and

digital publications video and film post-production properties

investment and music publishing

During the year the Group has disposed of its entire interest

in the video and film post-production and music publishing

businesses

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of

these financial statements are set out below These policies

have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless

otherwise stated

Basis of preparation

ffl EDU tEUULi

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance

with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards HKFRS
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants HKICPA They have been prepared

under the historical cost convention as modified by the

revaluation of investment properties certain leasehold

buildings and available-for-sale financial assets as further

explained below

stgi1ti1i
30

SCMP Group Annual Report 2008 69



Audited Financial Statements $IMMt

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M1%If9i

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS

HKICPA has issued number of new standards amendments

to standards and interpretations that have become effective

for the year ended 31 December 2008 including the

following that are relevant to the Groups operations

Amendments and interpretations effective in 2008

19 fl/flU2tUMflJU

nT\1E-hThEB1LE

Amendments to

HKAS 39

HKFRS

HKlFRIc-Int 11

HKIFRIc-lnt 14

Reclassification of financial assets

HKFRS Group and treasury share

transactions

HKAS 19 The limit on defined

benefit asset minimum funding

requirements and their interaction

ttSRU39

fflSJ tJ19
fl

The amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS on

reclassification of financial assets permit reclassification

of certain financial assets out of the held-for-trading and

available-for-sale categories if specified conditions are

met and introduce disclosure requirements with respect to

financial assets reclassified out of the held-for-trading and

available-for-sale categories The amendments are effective

prospectively from July 2008 The amendments do not

have any impact on the Groups financial statements as the

Group has not reclassified any financial assets

HKIFRIC mt ii provides guidance on whether share-based

transactions involving treasury shares or involving group

entities for example options over parents shares should

be accounted for as equity-settled or cash-settled share-

based payment transactions in the stand-alone accounts of

the parent and group companies This interpretation does

not have an impact on the Groups financial statements

HKIFRIC mt 14 provides guidance on assessing the

limit in HKAS 19 on the amount of the surplus that can

be recognised as an asset It also explains how the

pension asset or liability may be affected by statutory

or contractual minimum funding requirement This

interpretation does not have any impact on the Groups

financial statements

t39J7fltflfl2TSfF
SM42fl

flfl
if

1flb

$RUfl iitThflflflfl
$k
fl2fl

tflS$RU5fl %14aRU%19S2PRlltJ
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Audited Financial Statements MM

Interpretation effective in 2008 but not relevant

The following interpretation to published standards is

mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after

January 2008 but is not relevant to the Groups operations

HKIFRIc mt 12 Service concession arrangements

Standards amendments and interpretations to existing

standards that are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Group

The following standards and amendments to existing

standards have been published and are mandatory for the

Groups accounting periods beginning on or after January

2009 or later periods but the Group has not early adopted

them

HKAS Revised Presentation of financial statements

effective from January 2009

The revised standard prohibits the presentation of

items of income and expenses that is non-owner

changes in equity in the statement of changes in

equity requiring non-owner changes in equity to be

presented separately from owner changes in equity All

non-owner changes in equity are required to be shown

in performance statement but entities can choose

whether to present one performance statement the

statement of comprehensive income or two statements

the consolidated income statement and statement

of comprehensive income Where entities restate or

reclassify comparative information they are required

to present restated balance sheet as at the beginning

of the comparative period in addition to the current

requirement to present balance sheets at the end of

the current period and comparative period The Group

will apply HKAS Revised from January 2009

bCkSHM2fttI
Z2P

$fl2fPfli

fl-g$%121J

ràlZ ZTh2PO IIThmIa

22tr1nf5

tSRUi 1Bfl2fli

UILAJ9
1flflWfli fl

cIJJ

fl9fltU%i
Jo
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Audited Financial Statements IMM

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M1%INtIt

ii HKAS 23 Revised Borrowing costs effective from

January 2009

The amendment requires an entity to capitalise

borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition

construction or production of qualifying asset one

that takes substantial period of time to get ready for

use or sale as part of the cost of that asset The option

of immediately expensing those borrowing costs will

be removed The Group will apply HKAS 23 Revised

retrospectively from January 2009 but is currently

not applicable to the Group as there are no qualifying

assets

iii HKAS 27 Revised consolidated and separate financial

statements effective from July 2009

The revised standard requires the effects of all

transactions with non-controlling interests to be

recorded in equity if there is no change in control and

these transactions will no longer result in goodwill

or gains and losses The standard also specifies the

accounting when control is lost Any remaining interest

in the entity is re-measured to fair value and gain or

loss is recognised in profit or loss The Group will apply

HKAS 27 Revised prospectively to transactions with

non-controlling interests from January 2010

iv HKAS 32 Amendment Financial instruments

Presentation and HKAS Amendment Presentation

of financial statements Puttable financial instruments

and obligations arising on liquidation effective from

January 2009

The amended standards require entities to classify

puttable financial instruments and instruments or

components of instruments that impose on the entity

an obligation to deliver to another party pro rata

share of the net assets of the entity only on liquidation

as equity provided the financial instruments have

particular features and meet specific conditions The

Group will apply the HKA5 32 Amendment and HKAS

Amendment from January 2009 but it is not

expected to have any impact on the Groups financial

statements

i23 1fl$iLfli

Mflflk2
flPJf4flIMflTh 15fl22j-h

J2flflhlllELfl7u
23 flJ

Hi tJ%27 1Wiiit8

fl2ffDW1
gtt

ttSJ27 gJ

iv tJ32 IflIW
fltfl%i
Ifl42IffiLfltLH

tMJ%32tJi
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Audited Financial Statements IIMMt

HKFRS Amendment First time adoption of HKFRS

and HKAS 27 consolidated and separate financial

statements effective from January 2009

The amended standard allows first-time adopters to

use deemed cost of either fair value or the carrying

amount under previous accounting practice to measure

the initial cost of investments in subsidiaries jointly

controlled entities and associates in the separate

financial statements The amendment also removes

the definition of the cost method from HKAS 27 and

replaces it with requirement to present dividends

as income in the separate financial statements

of the investor The company will apply HKAS 27

Amendment prospectively from January 2009 in its

separate financial statements

vi HKFRS Amendment Share-based payment

effective from January 2009

The amended standard deals with vesting conditions

and cancellations It clarifies that vesting conditions

are service conditions and performance conditions

only Other features of share-based payment are

not vesting conditions As such these features would

need to be included in the grant date fair value for

transactions with employees and others providing

similar services that is these features would not

impact the number of awards expected to vest or

valuation thereof subsequent to grant date All

cancellations whether by the entity or by other parties

should receive the same accounting treatment The

Group will apply HKFRS Amendment from January

2009 but it is not expected to have material impact

on the Groups financial statements

JflCWU 1flBJi 1SS3fl

WAJI1JStv 3tLRfl

ttJ27flfl

vi J$1WflMi

MflIt

tVE4Ej

PAJ
1H 2t
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Audited Financial Statements hIMM

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS nwamst

vii HKFRS Revised Business combinations effective

from July 2009

The revised standard continues to apply the acquisition

method to business combinations with some significant

changes For example all payments to purchase

business are to be recorded at fair value at the

acquisition date with contingent payments classified

as debt subsequently re-measured through the

consolidated income statement There is choice on

an acquisition by acquisition basis to measure the non-

controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value

or at the non-controlling interests proportionate share

of the acquirees net assets All acquisition-related

costs should be expensed The Group will apply HKFRS

Revised prospectively to all business combinations

from January 2010

viii HKFRS Operating segments effective from

January 2009

HKFRS replaces HKAS 14 Segment reporting and

aligns segment reporting with the requirements of the

us standard SFAS 131 Disclosures about segments of

an enterprise and related information

The new standard requires management approach

under which segment information is presented on the

same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes

This has resulted in change in the reportable

segments presented In addition the segments are

reported in manner that is more consistent with

the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision-maker These changes will not have any impact

on the Groups profit or loss or equity The Group will

apply HKFRS from January 2009

vH flJ11i
ttSt9t

lJ fl2Pfrki
flfltt

gJ

viii fl8 flLtttL
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ix HKIFRIC mt 16 Hedges of net investment in

foreign operation effective from October 2008

HKIFRIC mt 16 clarifies the accounting treatment in

respect of net investment hedging This includes the

fact that net investment hedging relates to differences

in functional currency not presentation currency and

hedging instruments may be held anywhere in the

Group The requirements of HKAS 21 The effects of

changes in foreign exchange rates do apply to the

hedged item The Group will apply HKIFRIC mt

16 from January 2009 It is not expected to have

material impact on the Groups financial statements

HKIcPAs improvements to HKFRS published in October

2008

HKAS Amendment Presentation of financial

statements effective from January 2009

The amendment clarifies that some rather than

all financial assets and liabilities classified

as held for trading in accordance with HKAS

39 Financial instruments Recognition and

measurement are examples of current assets and

liabilities respectively The Group will apply the

HKAS Amendment from January 2009 It is

not expected to have an impact on the Groups

financial statements

HKAS 19 Amendment Employee benefits effective

from January 2009

The amendment clarifies that plan amendment

that results in change in the extent to which

benefit promises are affected by future salary

increases is curtailment while an amendment

that changes benefits attributable to past service

gives rise to negative past service cost if it

results in reduction in the present value of the

defined benefit obligation

The definition of return on plan assets has been

amended to state that plan administration costs

are deducted in the calculation of return on plan

assets only to the extent that such costs have been

excluded from measurement of the defined benefit

obligation

ix 16
Z1iRR

16
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U21bitL
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Audited Financial Statements $IUM

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M1UIII4E

The distinction between short term and long

term employee benefits will be based on whether

benefits are due to be settled within or after 12

months of employee service being rendered

HKAS 37 Provisions contingent liabilities and

contingent assets requires contingent liabilities

to be disclosed not recognised HKAS 19 has been

amended to be consistent

The Group will apply the HKAS 19 Amendment

from January 2009

HKAS 23 Amendment Borrowing costs effective

from January 2009

The definition of borrowing costs has been

amended so that interest expense is calculated

using the effective interest method defined in

HKAS 39 Financial instruments Recognition and

measurement This eliminates the inconsistency of

terms between HKAS 39 and HKAS 23 The Group

will apply the HKAS 23 Amendment prospectively

to the capitalisation of borrowing costs on

qualifying assets from January 2009

HKAS 28 Amendment Investments in associates

and consequential amendments to HKAS 32 Financial

Instruments Presentation and HKFRS Financial

instruments Disclosures effective from January

2009

An investment in associate is treated as single

asset for the purposes of impairment testing

and any impairment loss is not allocated to

specific assets included within the investment

for example goodwill Reversals of impairment

are recorded as an adjustment to the investment

balance to the extent that the recoverable amount

of the associate increases The Group will apply

the HKAS 28 Amendment to impairment tests

related to investment in associates and any related

impairment losses from January 2009
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HKAS 36 Amendment Impairment of assets

effective from January 2009

Where fair value less costs to sell is calculated on

the basis of discounted cash flows disclosures

equivalent to those for value-in-use calculation

should be made The Group will apply the HKAS 36

Amendment and provide the required disclosure

where applicable for impairment tests from

January 2009

HKAS 38 Amendment Intangible assets effective

from January 2009

prepayment may only be recognised in the

event that payment has been made in advance

of obtaining right of access to goods or receipt

of services This means that an expense will be

recognised for gift premium when the Group has

access to the
gift premium and not when the

gift premium are distributed to newspaper and

magazine subscribers as is the Groups current

accounting policy The Group will apply the HKAS

38 Amendment from January 2009 It is not

expected to have material impact on the Groups

financial statements

HKAS 39 Amendment Financial instruments

Recognition and measurement effective from

January 2009

This amendment clarifies that it is possible for

there to be movements into and out of the fair

value through profit or loss category where

derivative commences or ceases to qualify as

hedging instrument in cash flow or net investment

hedge

The definition of financial asset or financial

liability at fair value through profit or loss as it

relates to items that are held for trading is also

amended This clarifies that financial asset or

liability that is part of portfolio of financial

instruments managed together with evidence of an

actual recent pattern of short-term profit-taking is

included in such portfolio on initial recognition
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The current guidance on designating and

documenting hedges states that hedging

instrument needs to involve party external to

the reporting entity and cites segment as an

example of reporting entity This means that

in order for hedge accounting to be applied

at segment level the requirements for hedge

accounting are currently required to be met by the

applicable segment The amendment removes this

requirement so that HKAS 39 is consistent with

HKFRS Operating segments which requires

disclosure for segments to be based on information

reported to the chief operating decision maker

When remeasuring the carrying amount of

debt instrument on cessation of fair value hedge

accounting the amendment clarifies that revised

effective interest rate calculated at the date fair

value hedge accounting ceases are used

The Group will apply the HKAS 39 Amendment

from January 2009 It is not expected to have

an impact on the Groups consolidated income

statement

HKFRS Amendment Non-current assets held for

sale and discontinued operations and consequential

amendment to HKFRS First-time adoption effective

for accounting period beginning on or after July

2009

The amendment clarifies that all of subsidiarys

assets and liabilities are classified as held for

sale if partial disposal sale plan results in loss

of control and relevant disclosure should be

made for this subsidiary if the definition of

discontinued operation is met consequential

amendment to HKFRS states that these

amendments are applied prospectively from the

date of transition to HKFRS5 The Group will apply

the HKFRS Amendment prospectively to all

partial disposals of subsidiaries from January

2010
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There are number of minor amendments to HKFRS

Financial instruments Disclosures HKAS

Accounting policies changes in accounting estimates

and errors HKAS 10 Events after the balance sheet

date HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 34 Interim

financial reporting which are not addressed above

These amendments are unlikely to have an impact on

the Groups financial statements and have therefore

not been analysed in detail

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the company and its subsidiaries made up to

31 December

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the

power to govern the financial and operating policies so

as to obtain benefits from their activities This power is

deemed to exist when the Group has shareholding of

more than one half of the voting rights in an entity

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on

which control is transferred to the Group They are de

consolidated from the date that control ceases

The purchase method of accounting is used to

account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the

Group The cost of an acquisition is measured as the

fair value of the assets given equity instruments

issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the

date of exchange plus costs directly attributable

to the acquisition Identifiable assets acquired and

liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in

business combination are measured initially at their

fair values at the acquisition date The excess of the

cost of acquisition over the Groups interest in the

net fair value of the identifiable assets liabilities and

contingent liabilities acquired is recognised as goodwill

If the cost of acquisition is less than the Groups share

of the net fair value of acquirees identifiable assets

liabilities and contingent liabilities the difference

is recognised directly in the consolidated income

statement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M1%IMNtIt

Inter-company transactions balances and unrealised

gains on transactions between group companies are

eliminated unrealised losses are also eliminated unless

the transaction provides evidence of an impairment

of the asset transferred Accounting policies of

subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to

ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group

Minority interests at the balance sheet date being the

portion of the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to

equity interests that are not owned by the company

whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries

are presented in the consolidated balance sheet and

statement of changes in equity within equity separately

from equity attributable to the shareholders of the

company Minority interests in the results of the Group

are presented on the face of the consolidated income

statement as an allocation of the total profit for the

year between minority interests and the shareholders

of the company

Interests in subsidiaries in the companys balance

sheet are stated at cost less accumulated impairment

losses The results of subsidiaries are accounted for

by the company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable

ii Associates
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Associates are all entities over which the Group

has significant influence but not control generally

accompanying shareholding of between 20% and

50% of the voting rights Investments in associates are

accounted for by the equity method of accounting and

are initially recognised at cost The Groups investment

in associates includes goodwill net of any accumulated

impairment loss identified on acquisition

The Groups share of the post-acquisition profits or

losses and post-acquisition movements in reserves

of associates is included in the consolidated income

statement and consolidated reserves respectively

The Groups interests in associates are stated in the

consolidated balance sheet at the Groups share of net

assets of the associates under the equity method of

accounting less accumulated impairment losses which

are deemed necessary by the Directors
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Segment reporting

business segment is group of assets and operations

engaged in providing products or services that are subject

to risks and returns that are different from those of other

business segments geographical segment is engaged in

providing products or services within particular economic

environment that are subject to risks and returns that

are different from those of segment operating in other

economic environments

The Group has determined that its primary reporting format

is by business segments and its secondary reporting format

is by geographical segments No secondary reporting format

is presented as substantially all of the Groups activities

are based in Hong Kong and no other segments have

accounted for more than 10 percent or more of the Groups

total revenue from external customers total assets or total

capital expenditure during the year

Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of

the Groups entities are measured using the currency

of the primary economic environment in which the

entity operates the functional currency The

consolidated financial statements are presented in

Hong Kong dollars which is the Companys functional

and presentation currency

ii Transactions and balances

10%LL

1Ibi
_j

ii

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the

functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing

at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange

gains and losses resulting from the settlement of

such transactions and from the translation at year-

end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

the income statement except when deferred in equity

as qualifying cash flow hedges Translation differences

on available-for-sale financial assets are included in the

investment revaluation reserve
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iii Group companies

On consolidation the balance sheet of subsidiaries

and associates denominated in foreign currencies

are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the

balance sheet date whilst the income statement is

translated at an average rate The resulting translation

differences are included in the translation reserve

When any of these subsidiaries or associates is sold

any translation differences previously recognised in

respect of such subsidiary or associate are transferred

to the consolidated income statement as part of the

gain or loss on sale

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the

acquisition of foreign entity are treated as assets and

liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the

closing rate

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in

the ordinary course of the Groups activities

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the future

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when these

benefits can be measured reliably on the following bases

on the sale of goods when the significant risks and

rewards of ownership have been transferred to

the buyer provided that the Group retains neither

continuing managerial involvement to the degree

usually associated with ownership nor effective control

over the goods sold

ii newspaper advertisements and other services based

on the period in which such services are rendered

iii rental income in the period in which the properties

are let out and on the straight-line basis over the lease

terms

iii
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Property plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment other than assets in

progress are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses The cost

of an asset comprises its purchase price and any costs

directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working

condition and location for its intended use cost may also

include transfers from hedging reserve of any gains

losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency

purchases of property plant and equipment

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying

amount or recognised as separate asset as appropriate

only when it is probable that future economic benefits

associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost

of the item can be measured reliably All other repairs and

maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement

during the financial period in which they are incurred

Fair value gains on property plant and equipment are dealt

with in the asset revaluation reserve Fair value losses are

charged to the income statement to the extent that they

exceed fair value gains arising previously on the individual

assets subsequent fair value increase is recognised as

income to the extent that it reverses fair value loss of the

same asset previously charged to the income statement

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method

to allocate cost or revalued amounts of the property plant

and equipment to their residual values over estimated

useful lives Leasehold buildings are depreciated over

period of 25 to 50 years Other fixed assets other than

leasehold improvements are depreciated over to 20

years Leasehold improvements which are included as part

of other fixed assets are depreciated over the lease term

of to 50 years or their estimated useful lives whichever is

shorter No depreciationamortisation is provided for assets

in progress

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed

and adjusted if appropriate at each balance sheet date

An assets carrying amount is written down immediately

to its recoverable amount if the assets carrying amount is

greater than its estimated recoverable amount
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Investment properties

Investment properties are properties that are held to earn

rentals or for capital appreciation or both They comprise

land held under operating leases and buildings held

under finance leases Land held under operating leases is

classified and accounted for as investment property when

the definition of investment property is met

Investment properties are measured initially at costs

including related transaction costs After initial recognition

investment properties are carried at fair values with

changes in fair values recognised in the income statement

The methods used to determine the fair values of the

investment properties are set out in note to the financial

statements

subsequent expenditure on an investment property is

included in the assets carrying amount only when it is

probable that future economic benefits associated with the

item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be

measured reliably All other repairs and maintenance costs

are expensed in the income statement

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied it is

reclassified as property plant and equipment and its fair

value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for

accounting purposes

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment

property because its use has changed any difference

resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value

of this property at the date of transfer is recognised as

movement in the asset revaluation reserve However if

fair value gain reverses previous impairment loss the gain

is recognised in the income statement

Leases

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks

of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are

accounted for as operating leases Payments made

under operating leases including lease premium for

land held for own use net of any incentives received

from the lessor are charged to the income statement

on straight-line basis over the lease periods
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ii Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially

all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified

as finance leases Finance leases are capitalised at

the leases commencement at the lower of the fair

value of the leased property and the present value of

the minimum lease payments Investment properties

acquired under finance leases are carried at their fair

value

Intangible assets

Goodwill

ii

fl2aZ1E
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Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries

and associates represents the excess of cost of

the acquisition over the Groups interest in the net

fair value of the identifiable assets liabilities and

contingent liabilities acquired Goodwill is stated at cost

less accumulated impairment losses

Goodwill acquired in relation to subsidiaries is

allocated to cash-generating units and is presented as

an intangible asset in the consolidated balance sheet

Goodwill acquired in relation to associates is included

in the carrying amounts of the associates

Goodwill is tested at least annually for impairment and

carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the

carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold

ii Publishing titles

Pft21A2
enii

WItfl

Publishing titles with finite useful life are stated at

cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses Amortisation is calculated using

the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the

publishing titles over their estimated useful lives

Publishing titles with an indefinite useful life are tested

at least annually for impairment They are stated at

cost less accumulated impairment losses

Publishing titles that have been fully amortised in prior

years have not been restated They are included in the

financial statements at zero carrying amounts
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iii Software cost iii 4tZ

computer software licences are capitalised based on

their purchase price and direct cost of preparing the 2iI.kRTh
assets for their intended use

costs associated with maintaining computer software

programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred

Development costs that are directly attributable to the

design and testing of identifiable and unique software

products controlled by the Group are recognised as

intangible assets when the following criteria are met

it is technically feasible to complete the software

product so that it will be available for use

management intends to complete the software

product and use or sell it

there is an ability to use or sell the software

product

it can be demonstrated how the software product

will generate probable future economic benefits

adequate technical financial and other resources

to complete the development and to use or sell the

software product are available and

the expenditure attributable to the software

product during its development can be reliably

measured

Software costs recognised as assets are amortised frW
using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives ranging from five to seven years
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Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite life are tested at

least annually for impairment Intangible assets with finite

life and other property plant and equipment are tested for

impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of the

assets is estimated and where relevant an impairment loss

is recognised to reduce the carrying amount of the assets

to their recoverable amount such impairment losses are

recognised in the income statement except where an item

of property plant and equipment has been revalued and the

impairment loss does not exceed the balance in the asset

revaluation reserve in which case the impairment loss is

recognised as reduction in the asset revaluation reserve

Financial instruments

The Groups financial instruments comprise available-for-

sale financial assets accounts receivable cash and bank

balances accounts payable bank loans and overdraft and

share capital

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets represent share

investments that are not held for trading purposes

Purchases and sales of available-for-sale financial

assets are recognised on trade-date the date on

which the Group commits to purchase or sell the

shares They are initially recognised at fair value plus

transaction costs and subsequently carried at fair value

at each balance sheet date unrealised gains and losses

arising from changes in the fair values are recognised

in investment revaluation reserve When the shares

are subsequently sold or impaired the accumulated

fair value adjustments are included in the income

statement as gains and losses from available-for-sale

financial assets

The fair values of quoted investments are determined

directly by reference to published price quotations

from the relevant stock exchanges For unlisted shares

the Group establishes fair value by using valuation

techniques These include the use of recent arms

length transactions reference to other instruments

that are substantially the same and discounted cash

flow analysis
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The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether

there is objective evidence that the available-for-sale

financial assets are impaired If any such evidence

exists the cumulative loss measured as the difference

between the acquisition cost and the current fair value

less any impairment loss on that investment previously

recognised in the income statement is removed from

investment revaluation reserve and recognised in

the income statement Impairment losses previously

recognised are not reversed through the income

statement

Dividends from available-for-sale financial assets

are recognised when the right to receive payment is

established

ii Accounts receivable

Accounts receivables are recognised initially at fair

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method less allowance

for impairment An allowance for impairment on

accounts receivable is established when there is

objective evidence that the Group will not be able

to collect all amounts due according to the original

terms of receivables The amount of the allowance is

the difference between the assets carrying amount

and the present value of estimated future cash flows

discounted at the original effective interest rate

Impairment loss is recognised in the income statement

iii cash and bank balances

cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and

demand deposits and other short term highly liquid

investments which are readily convertible into known

amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk

of changes in value

For the purpose of consolidated cash flow statement

cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank

balances with original maturities of three months

or less and bank overdrafts that are repayable on

demand Bank overdrafts are shown separately as

current liabilities in the balance sheet

Interest income on bank deposits is recognised on

time proportion basis taking into account the principal

amounts outstanding and the effective interest rates

applicable
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iv Accounts payable iv

Accounts payable are initially measured at fair value

and are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method

Bank loans and overdraft

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdraft are initially

measured at fair value and are subsequently measured

at amortised cost using the effective interest

method Any difference between the proceeds net of

transaction costs and the settlement or redemption

of borrowings is recognised over the term of the

borrowings as finance costs in the income statement

vi Share capital vi

Ordinary shares are classified as equity The par value

of the shares issued and fully paid is recognised in the

share capital account Any excess of proceeds from

new issue of shares net of any incremental costs

directly attributable to the new issue over the par

value of the shares issued is recognised in the share

premium account

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value Costs of inventories are stated at weighted average

cost and in the case of work in progress and finished goods

comprise direct materials direct labour and an appropriate

proportion of overheads Net realisable value is based on

estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be

incurred to completion and disposal

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has present

legal or constructive obligation as result of past events

and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be

required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate of

the amount can be made
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contingent liabilities is possible obligation that

arises from past events and whose existence will only be

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or

more uncertain future events not wholly within the control

of the Group It can also be present obligation arising from

past events that is not recognised because it is not probable

that outflow of economic resources will be required or the

amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably

contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in

the notes to the financial statements When change in the

probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable

it will then be recognised as provision

Employee benefits

Employee retirement schemes

The Group operates four staff retirement schemes

comprising defined benefit pension DB scheme

defined contribution pension DC scheme

Mandatory Provident Fund MPF and Top-up

Top-up scheme for its employees the assets of

which are held separately from those of the Group in

independently administered funds The retirement

schemes are generally funded by payments from

employees and by the relevant Group companies

Contributions to the DC MPF and Top-up schemes are

charged to the income statement as incurred For the

DC and Top-up schemes the amounts charged to the

income statement may be reduced by contributions

forfeited by employees who leave these schemes prior

to vesting fully in the contributions
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The Groups contributions to the DB scheme are

made based on the periodic recommendations of

independent qualified actuaries Pension cost are

assessed using the projected unit credit method the

cost of providing pensions is charged to the income

statement so as to spread the regular cost over the

service lives of employees in accordance with the

advice of the actuaries who carry out full valuation

of the plans The pension obligation is measured as the

present value of the estimated future cash outflows by

reference to market yields of Government securities

which have similar terms as the related liabilities

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the income

statement over the average remaining service lives

of employees Past service costs are recognised as

an expense on straight-line basis over the average

period until the benefits become vested

ii Share-based compensation

The company has share option scheme which is

part of remuneration policy with rewards determined

based upon the performance of the Group and

individual employees The fair value of the employee

services received in exchange for the grant of options is

recognised as an expense in the income statement and

credited to the employee share-based compensation

reserve The total amount to be expensed over the

vesting period is determined by reference to the fair

value of the options granted taking into account the

market vesting conditions At each balance sheet

date the Group revises its estimates of the number

of options that are expected to become exercisable

and the impact taken to the income statement and

corresponding adjustment to the employee share-based

compensation reserve

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable

transaction costs are credited to share capital and

share premium when the options are exercised

Income tax expense
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Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the

determination of profit or loss for the year in respect of

current tax and deferred tax
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current income tax is based on estimated assessable profits

for the year It is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

unpaid current income tax for current and prior periods

is recognised as liability If the amount already paid in

respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount

due for those periods the excess is recognised as an asset

Deferred income tax is provided in full using the liability

method on temporary differences arising between the tax

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in

the financial statements Deferred income tax is determined

using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are

expected to apply when the related deferred income tax

asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the

extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be

available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences

arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates except

where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference

can be controlled by the Group and it is probable that the

temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the companys shareholders is

recognised as liability in the Groups financial statements

in the period in which the dividends are approved by the

companys shareholders

Comparative figures

certain comparative figures have been reclassified

to conform to current years presentation for

fairer representation of the Groups activities These

reclassifications have no effect on financial position profit

for the year or the cash flows of the Group
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date

that have significant risk of causing material adjustment to

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below

Defined benefit plans assets

Determining the carrying amount of defined benefit plans assets

requires actuarial assumptions made in respect of discount rate

rate of return on plan assets and rate of future salary increases

Changes to these assumptions could have significant risk of

causing material adjustment to the carrying amount in the

balance sheet Details of these actuarial assumptions are set out

in note 28a to the financial statements

Fair value of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties is performed in

accordance with the Valuation Standards on Valuation of

Properties published by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors

The valuation is reviewed annually by qualified valuers by

considering the information from variety of sources including

comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant

market

ii rental income derived from the existing tenancies with due

provision for any reversionary income potential and

iii current cost of replacement of property less deductions

for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of

obsolescence and optimisation The result of this approach

is then reviewed and analysed against the sales transactions

of industrial premises in comparable locations for

referencing purpose

Details of the valuation approach adopted for the Groups

investment properties are disclosed in Note to the financial

statements

TZBUT

WUZ2
i12/LJ228a

Ift2

2AA
Hi ifZ41
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Revenue and segment information

Turnover consists of revenue from all of the Groups principal

activities which comprises the aggregate of advertising

circulation and distribution income of newspapers and other

publications the net invoiced amount in respect of goods

sold and services rendered gross rental income and revenue

generated from discontinued operations Turnover for the

years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 amounted to

HK$1045302000 and HK$1251543000 respectively

During the year the Group has disposed of its entire interest

in the video and film post-production operation and music

publishing business Accordingly the results of these operations

are presented as discontinued operations in the consolidated

income statement The comparative information for the year

ended 31 December 2007 has been reclassified to conform to the

current years presentation

An analysis of the Groups revenue for the year is as follows

Revenue from newspapers magazines and other publications

included revenue of HK$7654000 2007 HK$7154000 arising

from exchanges of goods or services with third parties

m1ggt4

$2$ efl1flA

flRffCfltff-FThEH- 1t2J
1o453o2oooTh251543ooo5

Utt

n29fiT

flU2
17654000 Ltt 71540oo5

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

$P1
Revenue

Continuing operations I$S
Newspapers magazines and other publications 1010307 1212083

Investment properties 4fil 27467 19651

1037774 1231734

Discontinued operations Efl$
Video and film post-production MLt 5253 16545

Music publishing hBI 2275 3264

7528 19809

1045302 1251543
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Substantially all the activities of the Group are based in Hong

Kong and below is segment information by business segment flJ
TTJ-I- s-f- t$

Discontinued operations

Year ended 31 December 2008

Continuing operations

Newspapers

magazines Video and

and other film post-

publications Investment production Music

properties Sub-total publishing Sub-total Total

XflkFU1 1t Hf Llf tI1I
HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Revenue 1010307 27467 1037774 5253 2275 7528 1045302

Segment results and operating profit

210542 58411 152131 3048 48358 51406 203537

Share of profits of associates 1187 1187 1187

Net interest income 3IJJA 2141 2141 2148

Profit/loss before income tax

213870 58411 155459 3055 48358 51413 206872

Income tax expense 35333 13776 21557 21557

Profit/loss for the year 178537 44635 133902 3055 48358 51413 185315

Segment assets 1224374 989940 2214314 2214314

Interests in associates 53334 53334 53334

Total assets 1277708 989940 2267648 2267648

Segment liabilities 152781 14235 167016 167016

Current income tax and deferred income

tax liabilities 114585 55675 170260 170260

Total liabilities 267366 69910 337276 337276

Capital expenditure 17600 150 17750 35 35 17785

Depreciation 45256 45256 56 62 45318

Amortisation of intangible assets 7966 7966 7966

Amortisation of lease premium for landJI 585 585 585
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Year ended 31 December 2007 tEJJ
Continuing operations Discontinued operationsBiL

Newspapers

magazines Video and

and other film post-

publications Investment production Music

iEt properties Sub-total publishing Sub-total Total

1tU 49J /J iJt

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HKSOOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

T-
Revenue 1212083 19651 1231734 16545 3264 19809 1251543

Segment results and operating profit

386346 280956 667302 581 2239 2820 670122

Share of profits of associates 3380 3380 3380

Net interest income LA 6697 6697 689 689 6008

Profit/loss before income tax

396423 280956 677379 108 2239 2131 679510

Income tax expense 71159 47588 118747 118747

Profit/loss for the year 325264 233368 558632 108 2239 2131 560763

Segment assets 1450731 1043818 2494549 7906 1854 9760 2504309

Interests in associates 55888 55888 55888

Total assets 1506619 1043818 2550437 7906 1854 9760 2560197

Segment liabilities I3 182422 11602 194024 3076 1269 4345 198369

Current income tax and deferred income

tax liabilities 102743 70890 173633 173633

Total liabilities 285165 82492 367657 3076 1269 4345 372002

Capital expenditure 18170 18170 443 447 18617

Depreciation 48374 48374 115 124 48498

Amortisation of intangible assets 7918 7918 7918

Amortisation of lease premium for land

1021 1021 1021
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Property plant and equipment

Group

Leasehold Other fixed Assets in

buildings assets progress Total

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HKOOO

At January 2007

Cost or valuation 308868 1018489 779 1328136

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

81031 680099 53 761183

Net book value at January 2007

227837 338390 726 566953

Net book value at January 2007

2f31 227837 338390 726 566953

Additions 5657 10270 15927

Disposals ft 264 34 298

Reclassification/transfer 8766 8766

Depreciation 6480 42018 48498

Translation differences 70 70

Net book value at 31 December 2007

221357 310601 2196 534154

At 31 December 2007 tER
Cost or valuation 308868 1028684 2249 1339801

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

87511 718083 53 805647

Net book value at 31 December 2007

221357 310601 2196 534154
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Other property plant and equipment include plant and

machinery computer and office equipment and leasehold

improvements

4IJ

Group

Leasehold Other fixed Assets in

buildings assets progress Total

fl1I
HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

At January 2008

Cost or valuation Zi1 308868 1028684 2249 1339801

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

87511 718083 53 805647

Net book value at January 2008

221357 310601 2196 534154

Net book value at January 2008

221357 310601 2196 534154

Additions 8717 7086 15803

Disposals ll 66 66
Disposal of subsidiaries 517 517

Reclassification/transfer 1530 5390 5390 1530

Depreciation 6427 38891 45318

Translation differences 54 54

Net book value at 31 December 2008

213400 285288 3892 502580

At 31 December 2008 R8
Cost or valuation 299411 883594 3892 1186897

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

86011 598306 684317

Net book value at 31 December 2008

213400 285288 3892 502580
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One of the Groups leasehold buildings was revalued in 1990

by Knight Frank Kan Baillieu an independent professional

valuer at HK$9195000 being their open market value based

on their existing use No subsequent revaluation was carried out

as the Group has adopted the exemption provision of paragraph

80A of HKAS 16 of not making regular revaluations by class of

those assets stated at revalued amounts based on revaluations

which were reflected in prior years financial statements Had

such leasehold building been carried at cost less accumulated

depreciation the carrying value of such leasehold building

would have been stated at approximately HK$2254000 2007

HK$2601000

LiL
Frank Kan Baillieu

9195000 ZU168oAi
J2254000Y 26010ooY ffl

Group

Leasehold Other fixed Assets in

buildings assets progress Totalww
HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Analysis of cost and valuation as at 31 December 2008

4ff
At cost 290216 883594 3892 1177702

At valuation 1990 ii 9195 9195

299411 883594 3892 1186897

Analysis of cost and valuation as at 31 December 2007tEE 4$fr
At cost 299673 1028684 2249 1330606

At valuation 1990 tLi 9195 9195

308868 1028684 2249 1339801
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Investment properties

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO$1
At January 1040100 773800

Additions 150

Reclassification 27000

Fair value loss/gain 2121 1/i 81150 266300

At 31 December ER 986100 1040100

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group

Property Type Lease term

nzuJ

20th and 21st Floors and Car Parking Spaces Nos 21 22 and Offices and car parking spaces Long

23 on 4th Floor Bank of America Tower 12 Harcourt Road

Central Hong Kong

2223

ii The lobby on Ground Floor and the front portion of the 1st Retail shops offices and Medium

2nd and 3rd Floors No Leighton Road and portion of the advertising board spaces E1J

canopy on the 1st Floor level Vue King Building 26-30 Canal

Road West 1-7 Leighton Road and 41-47 Morrison Hill Road

Wanchai Hong Kong 23Z
26-3O
JI

iii Ground Floor Block Ko Fai Industrial Building Ko Fai Workshop unit Medium

Road Yau Tong Kowloon Hong Kong

iv Clear Water Bay Studio Clear Water Bay Road Kung Wan Vacant property Medium

Hang Hay New Territories Hong Kong

8th Floor of Block Sea View Estate Watson Road North Industrial building Medium

Point Hong Kong c1J
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The investment properties were valued by DTZ Debenham

Tie Leung Limited an independent professional valuer The

valuation represents the estimated amounts for which the

properties should exchange between willing buyer and willing

seller in an arms-length transaction after proper marketing

wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably prudently

and without compulsion Properties ii iii and above

have been valued by direct comparison approach by making

reference to comparable sales transactions as available in the

relevant market or where appropriate by investment method

by capitalising the rental income derived from the existing

tenancies with due provision for the reversionary income

potential of the properties Property iv has been valued by the

Depreciated Replacement Costs DRC approach The DRC is

the current cost of replacement reproduction less deductions

for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence

and optimisation The valuation determined by this approach

has also been reviewed and analysed by the independent

professional valuer against the sales transactions of industrial

premises in comparable locations for referencing purpose

For the year ended 31 December 2008 direct operating expenses

of HK$1061000 2007 HK$1117000 arising from investment

properties that generated rental income and HK$3740000

2007 HK$3487000 arising from investment properties that

did not generate rental income were charged to the consolidated

income statement

As at 31 December 2008 the Groups total future minimum

rental receivables under non-cancelable operating leases for its

investment properties are as follows

WE
frZ%i iitflath 9U R1QL

2flARZTh 2UAfFEH3
iv

ftfl fl
4Th

flCflT\ifLE-h9if
Tflt

if 1117000 tfflAlflfl
3740000 Ltff 34870003Y

Group

ST
2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOOfl
Not later than one year E3iif 14751 20187

Later than one year but not later than five years 13267 27178

28018 47365
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Lease premium for land fl

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

At January 31588 32609

Revaluation 8436

Reclassification 25470

Amortisation 585 1021

At 31 December 13969 31588

The Groups interests in leasehold land represent prepaid

operating lease payment and their net book value are analysed flT

as follows

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

In Hong Kong held on

Leases of between 10 to 50 years 13969 31588

Intangible assets

Group

Other

Publishing Software intangible Assets in

titles costs assets progress Total

Wi kft
HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Net book value at January 2007

29747 5173 34920

Additions 822 1868 2690

Disposals IH 150 150

Reclassification 6377 6377

Amortisation 7918 7918

Net book value at 31 December 2007tE92 29028 514 29542

At 31 December 2007 tB
Cost 1820000 57097 514 1877611

Accumulated amortisation 1820000 28069 1848069

Net book value 29028 514 29542
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Group

Other

Publishing Software intangible Assets in

titles costs assets progress Total

WI11 fi4
HK$OOo HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

At January 2008

Cost 1820000 57097 514 1877611

Accumulated amortisation 1820000 28069 1848069

Net book value 29028 514 29542

Net book value at January 2008

29028 514 29542

Additions 62 1770 1832

Reclassification/transfer 1158 1320 1158 1320

Amortisation 7645 321 7966
Translation differences

Net book value at 31 December 2008

22605 999 1125 24729

At 31 December 2008 E8
Cost 1820000 58317 1320 1125 1880762

Accumulated amortisation 1820000 35712 321 1856033

Net book value 22605 999 1125 24729

Interests in subsidiaries L24

Company

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Unlisted shares at costs

Amounts due from subsidiaries 1384747 1359248

1384747 1359248

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured interest-free

and have no fixed terms of repayment

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 33 to the

financial statements
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10 Interests in associates 10

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Associates

Share of net assets other than goodwill

Shares listed overseas 42673 45879

Unlisted shares 5455 4612

48128 50491

Goodwill 6047 6346

Amounts due to associates 841 949

53334 55888

Fair value of shares held in listed associate 139331 126406

The amounts due to associates are unsecured interest-free and

have no fixed terms of repayment

Summarised financial information in respect of the Groups

associates is set out below

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Total assets 465794 438086

Total liabilities 253612 213966

Net assets 212182 224120

Groups share of associates net assets 48128 50491

Revenue 409287 415263

Profit for the year 4814 11246

Groups share of associates profits for the year 1187 3380

Details of the principal associates are set out in Note 33 to the

financial statements
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11 Available-for-sale financial assets 11

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Listed equity shares at fair value

Hong Kong 105074 292722

12 Inventories 12

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Raw materials 38904 22487

Work in progress 548

Finished goods 41

38904 23076

The amount of inventories recognised as expense during the

year was HK$98268000 2007 HK$107481000 107481000Y

13 Accounts receivable 13 I1
The Group allows an average credit period of to 90 days to its

trade customers and an ageing analysis of accounts receivable is

as follows

Group

2008 2007

Balance Percentage Balance Percentage

th
HK000 HK$OOO

Current 108971 57.6 149374 63.7

Less than 30 days past due A30R 12341 6.5 22184 9.5

31 to 60 days past due 31H608 40221 21.3 45832 19.5

61 to 90 days past due 161R909 20344 10.8 15599 6.7

Over 90 days past due 7226 3.8 1505 0.6

Total 189103 100.0 234494 100.0

Less Allowance for impairment 1675 3190

187428 231304
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The carrying amounts of the accounts receivable are reasonable

approximation of their fair values

Accounts receivable that are neither past due nor impaired

amounted to HK$108870000 2007 HK$149374000 These 149374000
balances relate to wide range of customers for whom there

was no recent history of default

Below is an ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are past

due as at the reporting date but not impaired

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Less than 30 days past due 12248 20778

31 to 60 days past due 3t3186oH 40120 45525

61 to 90 days past due l6189OR 20288 15526

Over 90 days past due 5902 101

Total accounts receivable past due but not impaired 78558 81930

Accounts receivable past due but not impaired represent

balances that the Group considered to be fully recoverable based

on past experience portion of these balances is secured by

cash deposit placed by customers or bank guarantees

The movements in the allowance for impairment during the year

are as follows

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

At January 3190 3571

Impairment provision made B1W1 2095 2430

Amounts written off as uncollectible 664 633

Amounts recovered during the year
24

Impairment provision reversed 2953 2202

At 31 December EH-9 1675 3190
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The Group assesses its accounts receivable individually to

determine their recoverability and the allowance for impairment

account is used to record the provision made as result of

such assessments The ending balance of the allowance for

impairment represents accounts that were past due over an

extended period of time and the Group considers that they may

not be recoverable

3IIWI

14 Share capital 14 flQ

Group and Companyfl
2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOOat
Authorised

5000000000 shares of HK$0.10 each 500000 500000

Issued and fully paid

1560945596 2007 1560945596 shares of HK$0.10 each

1560945596fl Ltt 1560945596 156095 156095

During the year the company had share option scheme the

scheme which was approved at the annual general meeting of

the company held on 25 May 2006 the Adoption Date

under the scheme the Board of Directors of the company may

grant options to subscribe for shares of the company to any full-

time employee or Executive Director of the company or any of

its subsidiaries the Executive No consideration is required

to be paid by the Executive upon acceptance of the options

under the Scheme no option may be exercised earlier than one

year after it has been granted or later than ten years after the

Adoption Date i.e 25 May 2016

During the year no share option was granted exercised

cancelled or lapsed under the scheme No share option was

outstanding under the scheme as at 31 December 2008

fltfltt 1ttiLS19iic
tuIfl

EflWfl 1f5ltki
ff4rft1WE flaCi

4Rt Efl1EH f-REThE9

15 Reserves

Group

15

fl

Movements of the Groups reserves for the year ended 31

December 2008 and 2007 are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity on page 66

$wcnr\fctttE-frmE ih
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MIfl4

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the excess

of the nominal value of the shares of subsidiaries acquired

over the nominal value of the Companys shares issued in

exchange therefor during the Group reorganisation in 1990

less dividend distributions

Company

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as result

of the Group reorganisation in 1990 and represents the

difference between the nominal value of the Companys

shares so allotted and the consolidated net asset value

of the acquired subsidiaries and associate less dividends

distribution Under Bermudan law the contributed surplus is

distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances

In addition the Companys share premium of

HK$40971000 2007 HK$40971000 can be distributed

as fully paid-up bonus shares or applied towards eliminating

the retained losses of the Company

40971000Y
40971O00 1A

Share Contributed Retained

premium surplus profits Total

11$I
HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

At January 2007 40971 1143550 20415 1204936

Profit for the year 326625 326625

2006 final dividend distribution 202923 202923

2007 interim dividend distribution 124876 124876

At 31 December 2007 tEEH 40971 1143550 19241 1203762

At January 2008 40971 1143550 19241 1203762

Profit for the year 275252 275252

2007 final dividend distribution 156095 156095

2008 interim dividend distribution 93657 93657

At 31 December 2008 VRER 40971 1143550 44741 1229262
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16 Capital management 16

The Groups primary objective when managing capital is to

safeguard the Groups ability to continue its businesses as

going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for

shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders

The Group structures its capital with due consideration to risk

The Group manages and adjusts its capital structure in the light

of the changes in economic conditions and risk characteristics

of the underlying assets In order to maintain or adjust the

capital structure the Group may adjust the amount of dividends

paid to shareholders repurchase shares of the Company

from shareholders issue new shares or increase or reduce

borrowings

As at 31 December 2008 the Groups net debt-to-capital ratio is

zero 2007 zero For the purpose of calculating the net debt-

to-capital ratio the Group defines net debt as total debt which

includes bank overdrafts less cash and bank balances and

capital as all components of equity

17 Deferred income tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities are calculated in full on temporary

differences under the liability method using principal taxation

rate of 16.5% 2007 17.5%

The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities account is

as follows

Jll

17 If$416.5%
t175%

Group

su
2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

At January 151408 111833

Credit/charge to income statement for the year note 23

A/iflI f23 26898 39575

Charge to equity 1351

At 31 December EH-9 125861 151408
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The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities

prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation

jurisdiction during the year are as follows

Group

Accelerated tax Fair value gains on

Deferred income depreciation investment properties Others Total

tax liabilities

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$ooo HK$OOO

At January 99140 102443 56079 11089 1998 2076 157217 115608

Credit/charge to

income statement

tA/fl 9231 3303 15893 44990 526 78 25650 41609

Charge to equity 1351 1351

At 31 December E8 89909 99140 41537 56079 1472 1998 132918 157217

Group

Deferred income Provisions Tax losses Others Total

tax assets IIl

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK000 HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOOf9
At January 507 429 5236 3280 66 66 5809 3775

Charge/credit to

income statement

58 78 1372 1956 66 1248 2034

At 31 December EH 449 507 6608 5236 66 7057 5809

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Deferred income tax liabilities 132918 157217

Deferred income tax assets 7057 5809

125861 151408
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry

forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related

tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable The

Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$245147000 2007

HK$275011000 to carry forward against future taxable income

the expiry dates of these tax losses are shown as follows

A245147000
275011000 ZRT

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Expiring within one year 4309 1998

Expiring in the second to fifth year 53075 40694
After the fifth year 187763 232319

245147 275011

18 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities is i1-f
Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are the

following accounts payable

Group

2008 2007

Balance Percentage Balance Percentage

HK$OOO HK$OOO

to 30 days 30H 26643 77.1 20114 86.2

31 to 60 days 319609 4121 11.9 947 4.1

61 to 90 days 618909 2208 6.4 241 1.0

Over 90 days 908 1595 4.6 2025 8.7

Total accounts payable 34567 100.0 23327 100.0

Accrued liabilities 107899 130075

Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities

142466 153402

The carrying amounts of accounts payable are reasonable

approximation of their fair values

19 Bank overdraft secured

The Groups bank overdraft as at 31 December 2007 was

repayable within one year The carrying amount of the bank

overdraft is reasonable approximation of its fair value

19
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20 Staff costs 20 IJ
Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Staff costs for continuing operations including directors remuneration notetAIfMt I9a

Wages and salaries 350751 376188

Unutilised leave pay 1812 1954

Pension costs defined contribution plans 16182 14296

Less Forfeited contributions 1040 1412

Net pension costs defined contribution plans 15142 12884

Pension income defined benefit plan note 28 cLA fI28 12296 8197

355409 382829

Directors remuneration INI

The aggregate amounts of remuneration paid or payable to

Directors of the company during the year are as follows

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

95t
Fees

Executive

Non-executive
910 1153

Other emoluments tJfl
Salaries allowances and benefits in kind 1518 443

Retirement scheme contributions 60 30

Bonuses paid and payable
405 146

2893 1772

The remuneration of the above Directors fell within the

following band

2008 2007

HK$NiI HK$1000000 iooooooY
HK$1500001 HK$2000000 15000015 2O000OOY

112 SMP Group Annual Report 2008



Audited Financial Statements QIM

Mr Kuok Khoon Ean informed the Company that with effect

from April 2003 he would waive his entitlements to basic

salary and housing allowances until he informs the Company

otherwise Mr Kuok continued to waive his said entitlements

in the year 2008 Due to Mr Kuoks re-designation as Non-

executive Director his contract for services as Executive

Chairman of the Company was terminated with effect from

January 2009 No discretionary bonus was paid to Mr Kuok

in the years 2007 and 2008

All Non-executive Directors of the Company including

Independent Non-executive Directors proposed to

voluntarily waive 30% of their directors fees and where

applicable emoluments for serving on the Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee for

the year ended 31 December 2008

Save from the aforesaid there was no arrangement

under which Director waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration in respect of the year

Directors fees paid or payable to Independent Non-

executive Directors during the year were HK$700000

2007 approximately HK$905000 Directors fees received

or receivable by other Non-executive Directors during

the year amounted to HK$210000 2007 approximately

HK$248000 Save from the aforesaid there were no other

emoluments paid or payable to Non-executive Directors in

2008

No options were granted to Directors of the Company to

acquire share of the Company in 2007 and 2008

The details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for

the year ended 31 December 2008 are set out below

Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Kuok Khoon Ean was re-designated as Non-executive Director with

effect from January 2009

a3
30%

B12700oOo3
J905o005

210000
248000i J9FRE1t

1O

Salaries

allowances

and benefits Retirement Bonuses

Directors in kind scheme paid and

Name of Director fees contributions payable TotalIL WJ F1t EHET
HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

David Pang 70 70

Roberto Ongpin Roberto Ongpin 70 70

Ronald Arculli 210 210

Khoo Kay Peng 70 70

Kuok Hui Kwong 1518 60 405 1983

Kuok Khoon Ean IIij
Peter Lee Ting Chang 210 210

David Li Kwok Po 140 140

Wong Kai Man 140 140

910 1518 60 405 2893
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Executive Directors serving on the Board and Board

committees have not drawn any directors fee in the year

The directors fee of each of the Non-executive Directors

including Independent Non-executive Directors 2008

HK$70000 2007 HK$100000 is approved by the Board

of Directors pursuant to the authority granted by the

shareholders at the companys annual general meeting

Each Non-executive Director including Independent Non-

executive Director serving on the Audit committee the

Remuneration committee and the Nomination committee

receives an additional fee Audit committee 2008

HK$70000 2007 HK$100000 Remuneration committee

2008 HK$35000 2007 HK$50000 Nomination

committee 2008 HK$35000 2007 HK$50000 The

directors remunerations are determined with reference to

directors remunerations paid by other companies in Hong

Kong which are of comparable size and business nature

In addition to the aforesaid the emolument payable to

Executive Directors is also determined with reference to

the individuals performance and the companys financial

performance

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals during the year include one

2007 none of the Directors details of whose remuneration

are set out above The details of the remuneration of the

remaining four 2007 five highest paid individuals are set

out below

flitS flf5fl
7000035t 100000S$t11flflfl

fl2Wffl flt5fl Hfl1

9F4 Sfl 700005E

iooooot5 flflfl 350003

3500ot5 soooo

iLL9F $ttBMffifl2fl

nItZEUfrNA

fWfflAtA-tfl flt
WFJ Lflt 4fl

A2fflOT

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

flt5t

Salaries allowances and benefits in kind 6096 9286

Retirement scheme contributions 3R4tCtVJk 180 250

Bonuses paid and payable E1tBmE 712 2405

Compensation for loss of office 37 2575

7025 14516

114 5CMP Group Annual Report 2008



Audited Financial Statements

The remuneration of the four 2007 five highest paid 1fl it
individuals fell within the following bands

2008 2007

HK$1500001 HK$2000000 15OO0013Y 200000O
HK$2000001 HK$2500000 2o0o0015 25000O05
HK$2500001 HK$3000000 25000015 300o0005
HK$3000001 HK$3500000 3000001Y 35000O05

The Companys remuneration policy is established to I5JW

attract motivate and retain high performing individuals

so that they are committed to the success of our business

thereby enhancing shareholder value

The Company has share option scheme The Remuneration

Committee approves the granting of share options and

reports such grants to the Board of Directors The grant is

made based on individuals performance and contributions

21 operating profit 21

Operating profit from continuing operations is stated after

charging and crediting

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Charging

Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 18109 17690

Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment W2J 385

Auditors remuneration 1kl1 2836 2820

Crediting IfitA

Dividend income from listed investments tmJA 3342 3129

Net rental income from investment properties 27248 19357

Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment WJ
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M1mi
22 Net interest income/expense 22

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Continuing operations

Interest income on bank deposits 3195 7665

Interest expense on bank loans and overdraft 1054 968

2141 6697

23 Income tax expense 23

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of

16.5% 2007 17.5% on the estimated assessable profit for the 17.5%

year Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the

estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the countries in which Group operates

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Current income tax

Hong Kong profits tax 48294 78975

Overseas taxation 161 197

Deferred income tax

Resulting from decrease in tax rate 8531

Deferred tax with respect to fair value Ioss/gain on investment properties

W1 /Z 13390 44990

Other deferred tax credits 4977 5415

21557 118747
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The taxation on the Groups profit before income tax differs

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation

rate applicable to the places of operation of the company and its tEnT

subsidiaries as follows

Group

In
2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

flt
Profit before income tax

from continuing operations 155459 677379

from discontinued operations 51413 2131

Profit before income tax 206872 679510

calculated at taxation rate of 16.5% 2007 17.5%

4116.5% LtZtff 17.5% 34134 118914

Income not subject to taxation 10684 4832

Recognition of previously unrecognised temporary difference 55 3416
Effect of different taxation rates in other countries 2718 1922

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses 2E1 632

Over provision in prior year 63 140

Temporary difference recognised on undistributed profit in associates

461 78
Effect of change in taxation rate 8531

Tax losses not recognised 7849 6015

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 1423 4550

Withholding tax 156 268

Temporary difference not recognised 507 20

Income tax expense 21557 118747

During the year as result of the change in the Hong Kong LRPP
corporation tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% that will be effective Et
from April 2008 the opening balances of net deferred tax

liabilities have been remeasured
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M1Iwami

24 Discontinued operations 24 B$%ILfliM

The Group has disposed of its entire interest in the video and film

post-production operation and music publishing operation during

the year Accordingly the results of these operations are presented

as discontinued operations in the consolidated income statement An

analysis of the results of the discontinued operations is as follows

2Pfrk

Group

fl
2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

nfl
Revenue 7528 19809

Other income 4tIA 267 10

Staff costs 5074 8643

cost of production materials tJUh$ 2753 4174

Rental and utilities 526 1926

Depreciation and amortisation 62 124

Advertising and promotion 1$ 21 32

Other operating expenses 361 2100

Net interest income/expenses 3WU1iA/fl 689

Loss/profit of discontinued operations E4SI/tJ 995 2131

Gain on disposal of discontinued operations 52408

profit for the year from discontinued operations tEfliEflJ 51413 2131

Staff costs for discontinued operations Eflt1V1II

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOOnn
4800 8125Wages and salaries

unutilised leave pay

Pension costs defined contribution plans 3hZZ
Less Forfeited contributions

76 19

198 579

42

Net pension costs defined contribution plans 1tca 198 537

5074 8643
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Profit of discontinued operations is stated after charging

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 97 719

Auditors remuneration 157

Cash flows from discontinued operations are as follows

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Net cash used in/generated from operating activities 3459 21678

Net cash used in investing activities 28 406
Net cash used in financing activities 19719

Net decrease/increase in cash and cash equivalents A/iJU 3487 1553

25 Profit attributable to shareholders 25 flQlJ

The profit of HK$172768000 2007 HK$548084000 i17276800O 548O84000
attributable to shareholders included profit of HK$275252000

2007 HK$326625000 dealt with in the companys own 3266250005
financial statements

26 Dividends 26

Dividends attributable to the year

Company

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Interim dividend paid HK6 cents 2007 HK8 cents per share

B1tE 631ffl Ltj 8W 93657 124876

Final dividend proposed but not yet recognised HK2 cents 2007 HK1O cents

per share 21ffl ioW 31219 156095

124876 280971
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS N4t

Dividends paid during the year iB1tflQ

Company

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Interim dividend in respect of 2008 HK6 cents per share 611U 93657

Interim dividend in respect of 2007 HK8 cents per share 81ffl 124876

Final dividend in respect of 2007 HK1O cents per share io11U 156095

Final dividend in respect of 2006 HK13 cents per share 13W 202923

249752 327799

27 Earnings per share 27 19IJ

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is

based on the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of 5480840O0

HK$172768000 2007 HK$548084000 and 1560945596 1560945596 1560945596k

2007 1560945596 shares in issue during the year

Profit/Ioss attributable to shareholders

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Continuing operations 121355 548305

Discontinued operations 51413 221

172768 548084

As at 31 December 2008 there was no share options outstanding

that enable the holders to subscribe for shares 2007 NIL in the

company
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28 Employee retirement schemes

The Group continues to operate DB scheme DC scheme and

Top-up scheme These schemes are exempted recognised

occupational retirement schemes under the MPF Ordinance

The assets of these schemes are held separately from those of

the Group in two administered trust funds Schemes assets are

managed by independent professional investment managers

The Group also operates MPF scheme which is master trust

scheme established under trust arrangement

Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme is final salary defined benefit

plan

28 Uh1ThL

tT24
2flZtt

t$IJflJ

Pension costs are assessed using the projected unit credit

method The pension costs are charged to the income

statement so as to spread the regular cost over the service

lives of employees full valuation based on the projected

unit credit method has been carried out by Watson Wyatt

Hong Kong Limited an independent qualified actuary and

the pension costs are charged to the income statement

in accordance with their advice The actuarial valuations

indicate that the Groups obligations under this defined

benefit scheme is 91% 2007 136% covered by plan assets

held by the trustees

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit

obligations are as follows

19ffl2BG
ttPftW91% Lnta 136%

WiWff2nnJ9OT

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

At January fiB 323462 279674

Current service cost 14312 12769

Interest cost iShZ$ 10674 10271

Contributions by plan participants tA2 3588 3782

Actuarial gains/losses i/f 35832 40561

Benefits paid B1tU 31072 23595

At 31 December LE8 285132 323462
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IJf4I

Changes in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

At January 440856 373104

Expected return on plan assets 30323 25855

Actuarial losses/gains /i 184052 61710

Contributions by plan participants fJA2 3588 3782

Benefits paid B11J 31072 23595

At 31 December E9 259643 440856

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Fair value of plan assets 259643 440856

Present value of funded obligations E2 285132 323462

25489 117394

Unrecognised actuarial losses/gains 85593 69586

Net asset 60104 47808

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as

follows

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Current service cost 14312 12769

Interest cost 10674 10271

Expected return on plan assets 30323 25855

Net actuarial gains Z13 6959 5382

Total income included in staff costs Note 20 IIA BAIlt20 12296 8197
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The plan assets are invested in unit trusts managed by

independent investment managers The approximate asset

allocation as at the balance sheet date is as follows

Group

2008 2007

Equity instruments
67 71

Debt instruments
27 23

Cash
100 100

The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on

market expectation at the beginning of the period for

returns net of administration costs over the entire life of

the related obligations

The plan has benchmark asset mix of roughly 70% in

global equities and 30% in bonds and cash Based on

current market expectation of long-term returns the Group

has decided to adopt an expected rate of return of 7%

The actual return on plan assets was loss of

HK$153729000 2007 gain of HK$87565000 87565000

The principal actuarial assumptions were as follows

Group

2008 2007

Discount rate 1.30 3.40

Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.00 7.00

Expected rate of future salary increases 4.00 4.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MHU4I

Amounts for the current and previous three years are as

follows

Experience losses/gains on plan assetst/
Experience gains/losses on plan liabilities

Based on an actuarial valuation of the plan as at April

2008 the Group was recommended by the actuary to

suspend contribution to the OB scheme until 31 March 2011

The next actuarial valuation that will determine the level of

the Groups future contribution will be conducted not later

than April 2011

MPF scheme

The Group makes regular contributions of 5% of the

employees relevant income which is subject to cap of

HK$20000 to the MPF scheme MPF contribution

Top-up scheme

The Group makes regular contribution of 10% of the

employees monthly basic salary which is subject to cap

of HK$50000 Out of the 10% contribution it is firstly

applied to MPF Contribution and the balance will be made

to the Top-up Scheme

There were no material forfeited pension scheme

contributions during the current and prior year to reduce

contributions in future years

Defined contribution scheme

The contributions to the defined contribution pension

scheme are currently at 10-15% of the employees monthly

salaries

There were no material forfeited pension scheme

contributions during the current and prior year to reduce

contributions in future years

EE
t$

2oooo3ffj
Jf

U95oooo5 10%f10%Jtt

flPJtIO

21o%15%R2I

2008 2007 2006 2005

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Fair value of plan assets 259643 440856 373104 317269

Present value of defined benefit obligation

285132 323462 279674 235126

Deficit/Surplus i/ 25489 117394 93430 82143

184052 61710 41797 6782

93608 29180 17357 2506
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29 Operating lease commitments 29

As at 31 December 2008 the Group had future minimum lease

payment under non-cancelable operating leases for land and

buildings as follows

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOOii
Not later than one year 16585 18060

Later than one year but not later than five years 1088 14883

17673 32943

30 Capital Commitments 30

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Capital commitments for property plant and equipment

Contracted but not provided for 7898 6068

Authorised but not contracted for 50518 33388

58416 39456
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS If4

31 Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 31

Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from

operations

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOOUH
Operating profit from

continuing operations 152131 667302

discontinued operations 51406 2820

203537 670122

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 1370
Fair value loss/gain on investment properties 81150 266300

Depreciation and amortisation 53869 57437

Dividend income from listed investments 3341 3129
Gain/loss on disposal of property plant and equipment

fflJ 385

Pension income tLA 12296 8197
Decrease/increase in amounts due to associates ./i1JU 108 31

lncrease/decrease in inventories i7jg/ 16590 6176

Decrease in accounts receivable 41171 50467

lncrease/decrease in prepayments deposits and other receivables

it1jO/ 8077 604

Decrease/increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities/fl 7181 2847

Decrease/increase in subscriptions in advance i/ijfl 1245 2758

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 52408

cash generated from operations 278478 511831
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Disposal of subsidiaries
Wf11J

Group

In
2008

HK$OOO

Aggregate net asset at date of disposal excluding cash and cash equivalents

W823WR
Property plant and equipment VJI 515

Inventories
762

Accounts receivable BI 2705

Prepayments deposits and other receivables 1t 1071

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
3974

Translation reserve
594

485

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 52408

52893

Satisfied by

Cash consideration 4tM 55472

Less Cash and cash equivalents disposed of 654

Direct cost incurred t2Z$ 1925

Total net cash consideration 52893

Less Amount to be received in the year ended 31 December 2009

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 1472

51421
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Analysis of changes in financing during the year

Group

Short-term Long-term Minority

Bank loans Bank loans interestsM1P
HK$ooo HK$ooo HK$OOO

Balance at January 2007 1990 17000 11832

Non cash movements

Share of profits 12679

Exchange difference 144

Cash movements WF
Dividend paid to minority shareholder of subsidiary

7800
Repayment of bank loans 1990 17000

Balance at 31 December 2007 16567

Balance at January 2008 16567

Non cash movements tWE
Share of profits 12547

Cash movements

Dividend paid to minority shareholder of subsidiary

9000

Balance at 31 December 2008 20114

Cash and bank balances

Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Cash at bank and in hand 108675 125882 610 609

Short-term bank deposits 163340 131803

272015 257685 610 609
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32 Financial instruments 32 tBIA

The Groups activities expose it to variety of financial risks

particularly interest rate currency price liquidity and credit

risks Where appropriate the Groups risk management policies

seek to minimise potential adverse effects of these risks on the

financial performance of the Group The policies for managing

these risks are summarised below

Interest rate risk JflI

The Group has cash balances placed with authorised

financial institutions which generate interest income for the

Group The Group manages its interest rate risk by placing

such balances on various maturities and interest rate terms

All of the Groups bank loans and overdraft are arranged

at floating interest rates and exposed to interest rate risk

The Group manages the risk by setting roll-over periods

of various duration after due consideration of market

conditions and expectation of future interest rate

The following table details the interest rate profile of the

Groups short-term bank deposits and interest-bearing

borrowings

fl fflP92-flfl 1Uft

Group

fl
2008 2007

Effective Effective

interest rate interest rate

flIJs

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Short-term bank deposits 0.92 163340 3.51 131803

Bank overdraft 6.57 19172

Net exposure $W 163340 112631
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS niimit

At 31 December 2008 it is estimated that general

increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates

with all other variables held constant would increase

decrease the Groups profit for the year and total equity by

approximately HK$1633000 2007 HK$1126000

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined

assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred

at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the

interest-bearing financial instruments in existence at that

date The 100 basis points increase or decrease represents

managements assessment of reasonably possible change

in interest rates over the period until the next annual

balance sheet date The analysis is performed on the same

basis for 2007

Currency risk

CIT\1EEH-8 anfl/ioo
ffl flfljf

o/tE1o33ooot5 Lflt
1126oo0

19BfltMflI

tth2fl3f5

iThLI

The currency risk of the Group arises mainly from its

purchases of raw material and capital expenditure and

sales transactions denominated in currencies other than its

functional currency In addition the Group also has foreign

currency deposits and foreign currency borrowings that are

exposed to currency risk The currencies giving rise to this

risk are primarily Renminbi and Euros

The Group closely monitors the changes in foreign currency

exchange rates and hedging strategies will be adopted

where appropriate The Group did not adopt any hedging

strategies during the year as currency risk was considered

to be insignificant

The Groups exposure to currency risk at the balance sheet

date is summarised as follows

ILL9F

PA 21W9flT

Group

su
2008 2007

Renminbi Euros Renminbi Euros

000 000 000 000

Aflt5t AF
Accounts receivable 12114 3299

Accounts payable B1IIP 4612 1007 31

Cash and bank balances 6433 2933

Bank overdraft 18000

Net exposure 13935 12775 31
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The following table indicates the approximate changes in

the Groups profit for the year and retained profits and

total equity in response to reasonably possible changes

in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has

significant exposure at the balance sheet date

9FbT 2U

Group

The stated changes represent managements assessment

of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates

over the period until the next annual balance sheet date In

this respect it is assumed that the pegged rate between the

Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar would not be

materially affected by any changes in movement in value

of the United States dollar against other currencies Results

of the analysis as presented in the above table represent

an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group entities

profit for the year and total equity measured in the

respective functional currencies translated into Hong Kong

dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date

for presentation purposes The analysis is performed on the

same basis for 2007

2ZEL

2008 2007

Increase

decrease

in foreign

exchange

rates

.h/

Increase

decrease

in profit

for the Increase/

year and decrease Increase

retained in decrease

profits translation in total

$IJ reserve equity

wIJ
11/ 1/ 1/

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Increase

decrease

in foreign

exchange

rates

Renminbi

Euros

Increase

decrease

in profit

for the Decrease

year and increase Decrease

retained in increase

profits translation in total

reserve equity

j/ 4/
HK$OOO HK$000 HK$OOO

1574

1574

10%

10%

10%

10%

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming

that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred

at the balance sheet date and had been applied to each of

the Group entities exposure to currency risk for financial

instruments in existence at that date and that all other

variables in particular interest rates remain constant

1577 10% 1380 1371

1577 10% 1380 1371

10% 29 29

10% 29 29

9BIZ
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Equity price risk JQ1Z

The Group has investments in shares of companies listed

on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited which are

classified as available-for-sale financial assets in the

financial statements These shares are mainly constituents

of the Hang Seng Hong Kong Composite Index The market

values of these investments are affected by amongst

others changes in market prices as result of changes in

global economic conditions macro and micro economic

factors affecting the country where the investments are

quoted and factors specific to the investee companies

The fluctuations in market prices due to the above factors

are unforeseen The Group monitors changes in these

factors and responds to them as and when appropriate and

necessary

At 31 December 2008 it is estimated that 10% increase

decrease in Hang Seng Hong Kong Composite Index

with all other variables held constant the Groups

investment revaluation reserve and total equity would

increase by approximately HK$5811000 and decrease

by HK$32095000 2007 increase of HK$33158000 and

decrease of HK$45624000 respectively

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming

that the reasonably possible changes in the stock market

index had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been

applied to the available-for-sale financial assets in existence

at that date It is also assumed that the fair values of the

Groups investments would change in accordance with

the historical correlation with the relevant stock market

index and that none of the Groups investments would be

considered impaired as result of reasonably possible

decrease in the relevant stock market index The stated

changes represent managements assessment of reasonably

possible changes in the relevant stock market index over

the period until the next annual balance sheet date The

analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007

Th

3f/T10%O5811000
32095000
456240005

Eb
Jij 9E2W

iU
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group will encounter

difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with financial

liabilities The Groups objective in managing this risk is to

maintain balance between the continuity and the flexibility

of funding through the use of bank loans and overdraft

In addition banking facilities have been put in place for

contingency purposes

The following table details the remaining contractual

maturities at the balance sheet date of the Groups financial

liabilities which are based on contractual undiscounted

cash flows including interest payments computed using

contractual rates or if floating based on rates as at the

balance sheet date and the earliest date on which the

Group can be required to pay

5JfEfl

15EP2Iit2J
fl flS2Jnfl

Group

In
2008 2007

Accounts Bank Accounts Bank

payable overdraft payable overdraft

l3ttfl

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

flf
Within year or on demand 34567 23327 19172

More than year but less than years

More than years but less than years

Total contractual undiscounted cash flow

34567 23327 19172

carrying amount 34567 23327 19172
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M1%Wf$1t

Credit risk 1RJI

The Groups credit risk arises mainly from its bank deposits

and accounts receivable To mitigate the risk arising from

banks the Group places its deposits with number of

authorised financial institutions

The Group manages its credit risk associated with accounts

receivable through the application of credit approvals

credit ratings and monitoring procedures The Group also

obtains bankers guarantees or cash deposits as collateral

from certain customers

credit sales are only made to customers with appropriate

credit history or high credit standing while sales to new

customers or customers of low credit standing are usually

made on an advance payment or cash on delivery basis

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account

of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount

of bank balances and accounts receivable after deducting

any impairment allowance

At the balance sheet date there is no concentration of

credit risk as the Groups five largest customers accounted 235% Lt 26%

for 35% 2007 26% of total accounts receivable balance

only

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Groups

exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are

set out in note 13 to the financial statements
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33 Subsidiaries and Associates

Particulars of the Companys principal subsidiaries and the

Groups principal associates at 31 December 2008 are as follows

Subsidiaries

33

iERZOT

Mai Xin Advertising Communications

Beijing Co Ltd

The Peoples

Republic of China

Wholly Foreign-

owned Enterprise

Ordinary

US$2

Ordinary

US$2

Ordinary

us$1

1y

Registered capital

US$2100000

2100000

Ordinary

HK$2

2Y

100% Advertising agent

Place of

incorporation

registration Nominal value

and operations of issued/

Kind of registered Proportion held

legal entity share capital

Company Direct Indirect Nature of business

wJ I11 M1 1t
Coastline International Limited

Lyton Investment Limited

Macheer Properties Limited

100%The Commonwealth

of The Bahamas

The Commonwealth

of The Bahamas

The British Virgin

Islands

Property holding

100% Property holding2l

100% Property holding

100%SCMP 1994 Limited Hong Kong Investment

holding
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Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Ordinary

HK$10000

1oooo5

Ordinary

HK$10000

1oo005

HK$10000

10OOO5

Ordinary

HK$2

25t

Ordinary 100%

us$1

70% Magazine

publishing

100% Magazine

publishing

100% Magazine

publishing

Investment

holding

Shanghai Hu Ving Advertising

Co Ltd

The Peoples

Republic of China

Wholly Foreign-

owned EnterpriseA1

Registered capital

US$2100000

fta
21000005

100% Advertising agent

Place of

incorporation/

registration Nominal value

and operations of issued/

Kind of registered Proportion held

legal entity share capital

Company Direct Indirect Nature of business

Ml 1t
Ordinary

HK$2000000

20O0000

100% Book publishing
SCMP Book Publishing Limited

SCMP Hearst Publications Limited

SCMP Magazines Publishing

HK Limited

SCMP Magazines

Publishing Limited

SCMP Maxim Limited

SCMP.com Holdings Limited

Ordinary 100% Publication

and advertising

The British Virgin

Islands
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Shanghai Nan Hong Information

Services Co Ltd

The Peoples

Republic of China

Wholly Foreign-

owned Enterprise

9Jt

Registered capital

US$5500000

fta
55OO0007G

consulting and

advisory service

South China Morning Post

Publishers Limited

South China Morning

Post Pte Ltd

Singapore

HK$201000000

2O1O0O000

Ordinary

S$3

3r7Jfl

100% Advertising agent

Sunny Bright Development

Limited

Sunny Success Development

Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Ordinary

HK$2

Ordinary

HK$2

Place of

incorporation/

registration Nominal value

and operations of issued/

Kind of registered Proportion held

legal entity share capital

Company
Eli/ Direct Indirect Nature of business

JM UJ IHH11 MI 1II
100% Provision of

Hong Kong Ordinary 100% Newspaper

and magazine

publishing

100% Property holding

100% Property holding
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Mf4I
Associates

Dymocks Franchise Systems

China Limited

Hong Kong

The Post Publishing Public

Company Limite

Ordinary

Baht500000000

5OOO0OOOO

21.3% Newspaper

and magazine

publishing

The accounts of these companies were not audited

by Price waterhouseCoopers Hong Kong or other

Price waterhouseCoopers International member firms

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company and

associates of the Group which in the opinion of the Directors

principally affected the results of the year or formed

substantial portion of the net assets of the Group To give details

of other subsidiaries and associates would in the opinion of the

Directors result in particulars of excessive length

2I$iztr

Place of Nominal value Percentage of

incorporation of issued equity attributable

Company and operations share capital to the Group Nature of business

E1ifI 1QWft
Ordinary

HK$7700000

77O0OOO5

45%

Thailand

Bookshop

operation
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34 Related Party Transactions

On 11 February 2008 Kelly Media Limited company

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands became the immediate

holding company of the company Kelly Group Limited

company incorporated in the cook Islands is the ultimate

holding company of Kerry Media Limited The directors regard

Kerry Group Limited as the ultimate holding company of the

company as of the balance sheet date

Transactions with Kerry Group

significant transactions with Kerry Group Limited and its

group of subsidiaries Kerry Group since its becoming the

Groups holding company are as follows

34 MIAt2

Kerry Media Limited Pfttt3L2i Z21 Kerry

Group Limited Kerry Media

Limited2$IJ t$ftKerry Group Limited

MKerry Group22

2illQiKerry Group LimitedW
IKerry Group fl9oT

Group

fl
2008

HK$OOO

Rendering of services

Advertising revenue 2168

Magazine production service fee 1701

3869

Balances arising from transactions with Kerry Group Mkerry Group 152fi

Group

In
2008

HK$OOO

flt5t

Receivables arising from advertising services $Pft2JMI 132

Receivables arising from magazine production services 636

768
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MIIJf4i

Key management personnel compensation

Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$Ooo

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 19199 22068

Post-employment benefits 500 537

Termination benefits 239

19938 22605

35 Approval of the Financial Statements 35 M2th
The financial statements were approved by the Board of

Directors on 30 March 2009
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Five-year Financial Summary MMI1
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Year ended 31 December

tZ.q El-

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

1045 1252 1213 1120 1375

226 398 378 287 264

81 266 40 50 18

204 670 420 306 363

22

173

119 80 59 48

548 339 246 317

14.50

11.07

in HK$ millions except per share amounts

OPERATING RESULTS 1M
Revenue

Operating profit from principal activities

Fair value gain/loss on investment properties

Operating profit

Share of profits/losses of associates and

jointly controlled entity

Income tax expense

Net profit attributable to shareholders

PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK IIQI

Operating profit from principal activities per share in HK cents

I2WfJ 3W
Basic earnings per share in HK cents WD l11J

Diluted operating profit from principal activities per share

in HK cents l1UJ

Diluted earnings per share in HK cents lt1J

Dividend per share in HK cents fthi

Net asset value per share in HK$ WW31

FINANCIAL POSITION M$kR

Property plant and equipment

Total assets

Bank loans ffl
Total liabilities

Net assets attributable to shareholders

Number of shares in issue

KEY RATIOS IJtt$

Operating profit from principal activities to revenue 22% 32% 31% 26% 19%

Return on average equity 8% 27% 19% 14% 20%

Return on average total assets 7% 23% 15% 11% 15%

Gearing UflIt4I

Current assets to current liabilities Rttt 2.47 2.40 2.16 1.71 1.58

FULL TIME EMPLOYEES tRItIAt 943 1032 1016 1044 1035

25.48 24.19 18.41 16.92

35.11 21.69 15.78 20.32

N/A fIt N/A TM N/A TM N/A TM N/A TM
N/A Itffl N/A TM N/A TM N/A TM N/A TM

8.00 18.00 19.00 15.00 15.00

1.22 1.39 1.21 1.10 1.08

503 534 567 623 602

2268 2560 2293 2138 2207

19 69 247

337 372 398 407 509

1910 2172 1883 1721 1685

1S60945596 1560945596 1560945596 1560945596 1560945596
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Corporate Information

Shareholder Information Online

www.scmpgrou p.com

Our website has up-to-date information about our company including

financial information press releases and other corporate information

Investor Relations

Ponch Poon

852 2565 2319

investor.relationsscmp.com

Corporate Communications

Michael McComb

852 2250 3130

communicationsscmp.com

Company Secretary

Vera Leung

852 2680 8805

corporatesecretariaRscmp.com

Career Opportunities

We offer career opportunities in journalism advertising circulation

marketing production human resources finance and information

technology Applicants can send their applications to career@scmp.com

Share Registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

46/F Hopewell Centre

183 Queens Road East Hong Kong

Butterfield Fulcrum Group Bermuda Limited

Rosebank Centre 11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HMO8 Bermuda

Registered Office

Canons Court 22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM12 Bermuda

Head Office and Principal Place of Business

Morning Post Centre 22 Dai Fat Street

Tai P0 Industrial Estate New Territories

Hong Kong

852 2680 8888

15-16/F Somerset House 979 Kings Road

Quarry Bay Hong Kong

852 2565 2565

852 2565 2222

www.scmpgroup.com

852 2565 2319

investor.relationsscmp.com

Michael McComb

852 2250 3130

communicationsscmp.com

852 2680 8805

corporatesecretarialscmp.com

ZI1 r- Ai
careerscmp.com

183
Jfli\461

Butterfield Fulcrum Group Bermuda Limited

Rosebank Centre 11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HMO8 Bermuda

Canons Court 22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM12 Bermuda

852 2680 8888

852 2565 2565

852 2565 2222
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Corporate Information àt4

Stock Listing

Listed on the main board of

the Hong Kong Stock Exchange 0583.HK

Ticker 0583.HK

Annual General Meeting fl2tt
The annual general meeting will be held

on 25 May 2009 at 1100 a.m at

Island Ballroom Level Island Shangri-La Hotel

Pacific Place Supreme Court Road Hong Kong

Company Listings

Newspaper Publishing

South China Morning Post Publishers Limited

Morning Post Centre 22 Dai Fat Street

Tai P0 Industrial Estate New Territories

Hong Kong

852 2680 8888 852 2680 8888

Magazine Publishing

SCMP Hearst Publications Limited SCMP Hearst Publications Limited

SCMP Maxim Limited SCMP Maxim Limited

SCMP Magazines Publishing HK Limited SCMP Magazines Publishing HK Limited

15/F Somerset House 979 Kings Road

Quarry Bay Hong Kong

852 2565 2565 852 2565 2565

Principal Banker

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Queens Road Central Hong Kong

Legal Advisers

Clifford Chance

28/F Jardine House

One Connaught Place Hong Kong

Deacons

5/F Alexandra House

18 Chater Road

Central Hong Kong

Appleby Appleby

8/F Bank of America Tower

12 Harcourt Road

Central Hong Kong
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Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

22/F Princes Building

Central Hong Kong

Board of Directors IRS
Non-Executive Directors

Dr David Pang Chairman

Roberto Ongpin Deputy Chairman Roberto Ongpin

Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng

Kuok Khoon Ean

Independent Non-executive Directors EE44YMa
The Hon Ronald Arculli

Peter Lee Ting Chang

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok P0

Wong Kai Man

Executive Director

Kuok Hui Kwong

Audit Committee

Peter Lee Ting Chang Chairman

The Hon Ronald Arculli

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok P0

Wong Kai Man

Remuneration Committee

Peter Lee Ting Chang Chairman

The Hon Ronald Arculli W1J
Kuok Khoon Ean

Nomination Committee

Peter Lee Ting Chang Chairman

The Hon Ronald Arculli

Dr David Pang
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Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchangi of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for

the contents of this notice make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any

liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this

notice

SCMP Group LimitedSCMP
OnccpotCd Bcrn with lImLtcd tiubUlly

Stock COde 583

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of SCMP Group Limited will be held at

Island Ballroom Level Island Shangri-La Hotel Pacific Place Supreme Court Road Hong

Kong on Monday 25 May 2009 at 1100 a.m for the following purposes

To receive and consider the Audited Financial Statements and the Directors Report and

Independent Auditors Report for the year ended 31 December 2008

To approve the payment of final dividend

To re-elect the following retiring Directors

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong as Executive Director

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok Po as Independent Non-executive Director

Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng as Non-executive Director

TO authorise the Board to fix Directors fee

To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as Auditor and authorise the Board to fix their

remuneration

As special business to consider and if thought fit pass the following resolution as an

ordinary resolution

THAT

subject to paragraph below the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant

Period as hereinafter defined of all the powers of the Company to allot issue and

deal with additional Shares or securities convertible into such Shares or options or

warrants or similar rights to subscribe for any Shares and to make or grant offers

agreements and options which would or might require Shares to be allotted and issued

be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved

the approval in paragraph above shall authorise the Directors to make or grant

offers agreements and options during the Relevant Period which would or might

require Shares to be allotted and issued during and/or after the end of the Relevant

Period

CoSec/announcement/e-21042009-AGM Notice



the aggregate nominal amount of Shares allotted or agreed conditionally or

unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors pursuant to the approval in paragraphs

and above otherwise than pursuant to or in consequence of

Rights Issue as hereinafter defined or

ii the exercise of the conversion rights under the terms of any securities which are

convertible into Shares or

iii any option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for the

grant or issue to officers and/or employees of the Company and/or any of its

subsidiaries of Shares or rights to acquire Shares or

iv the exercise of rights of subscription under the terms of any warrants issued by

the Company or

any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for the allotment of Shares

in lieu of the whole or part
of dividend on Shares in accordance with the

Bye-Laws of the Company

shall not exceed 20 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of

the Company in issue at the date of the passing of this resolution and

for the purpose of this resolution

Relevant Period means the period from the passing of this resolution until the

earliest of

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company following

the passing of this resolution and

ii the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the

Company is required by the Bye-Laws of the Company or any applicable law to

be held and

iii the date on which the authority set out in this resolution is revoked or varied by

an ordinary resolution of the members of the Company in general meeting

Rights Issue means an offer of Shares or an offer of warrants options or other

securities giving rights to subscribe for Shares open for period fixed by the

Directors to holders of Shares on the Register of Members of the Company on fixed

record date and where appropriate the holders of other equity securities of the

Company entitled to be offered therein in proportion to their then holdings of such

Shares or other equity securities subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as

the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or

having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of or the requirements

of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in any territory outside

Hong Kong

CoSec/announcementle-2 042009-AGM Notice



As special business to consider and if thought fit pass the following resolution as an

ordinary resolution

THAT

subject to paragraph below the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant

Period as hereinafter defined of all powers of the Company to repurchase its Shares

subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and/or requirements of the

Listing Rules be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved

the aggregate nominal amount of Shares which may be repurchased by the Company

pursuant to the approval in paragraph above during the Relevant Period should not

exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of Shares in issue at the date of

the passing of this resolution and the said approval shall be limited accordingly and

for the purpose of this resolution Relevant Period means the period from the passing

of this resolution until the earliest of

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company following the

passing of this resolution and

ii the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the

Company is required by the Bye-Laws of the Company or any applicable law to

be held and

iii the date on which the authority set out in this resolution is revoked or varied by

an ordinary resolution of the members of the Company in general meeting

As special business to consider and if thought fit pass with or without amendments the

following resolution as an ordinary resolution

THAT subject to the passing of the resolutions and above the general mandate granted

to the Directors to exercise the powers of the Company to allot issue and deal with

additional Shares pursuant to resolution above be and is hereby extended by the addition

thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of Shares repurchased by

the Company under the authority granted pursuant to resolution above provided that such

amount of Shares so repurchased shall not exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal

amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of the passing of this

resolution

By Order of the Board

Vera Leung

Company Secretary

Hong Kong 21 April 2009
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As at the date hereof the Board comprises

Non-executive Directors

Dr David Pang Chairman Mr Roberto Ongpin Deputy Chairman Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay

Peng and Mr Kuok Khoon Ean

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Hon Ronald Arculli Mr Peter Lee Ting Chang Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok Po and

Mr Wong Kai Man

Executive Director

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong

Notes

member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to appoint proxy or proxies to attend and

vote in his or her stead and any such member who is holder of two or more shares in the Company is entitled to

appoint more than one proxy to attend and vote in his or her stead proxy need not be member of the Company

The instrument appointing proxy
shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly

authorised in writing or if the appointor is corporation either under seal or under the hand of an officer or

attorney duly authorised

Where there are joint registered holders of any share any one of such persons may vote at the above meeting either

personally or by proxy in respect of such share as if he were solely entitled thereto but if more than one of such

joint holders be present at the meeting personally or by proxy that one of the said persons so present whose name

stands first on the register of members of the Company in respect of such share shall alone be entitled to vote in

respect thereof Several executors or administrators of deceased member in whose name any share stands will for

this purpose be deemed joint holders thereof

To be valid the form of proxy together with the power of attorney or other authority if any under which it is

signed or notarially certified copy thereof must be lodged at Morning Post Centre 22 Dai Fat Street Tai Po

Industrial Estate New Territories Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before

the time appointed for the holding of the above meeting Completion and deposit of the form of proxy will not

preclude member from attending and voting in person at the above meeting if the member so wishes

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday 19 May 2009 to Friday 22 May 2009 both

dates inclusive during which period no transfer of shares will be effected All transfers accompanied by the relevant

share certificates must be lodged with the Companys Hong Kong Branch Share Registrars Computershare Hong

Kong Investor Services Limited of Room no 1712-1716 17th Floor Hopewell Centre 183 Queens Road East

Hong Kong not later than 430 p.m on Monday 18 May 2009 so as to qua1if for the proposed final dividend and

attending the above meeting

Members of the Company are advised to read the circular to shareholders dated 21 April 2009 which contains

information concerning the resolutions to be proposed in this notice

For identification purpose only
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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action you should take you should consult

your
stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities bank manager solicitor professional accountant or

other professional adviser

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in SCMP Group Limited you should at once hand this circular

and the accompanying form of proxy to the purchaser or transferee or to the bank stockbroker or other agent

through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no

responsibility for the contents of this circular make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness

and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or In reliance upon

the whole or any part of the contents of this circular

SCMP Group LimitedSCMPU
JncorpöràtedIn Bermuda with limited liabdisy

Stock Code 583

Proposal for Grant of General Mandates

to Issue and Repurchase Shares

and

Notice of Annual General Meeting

notice convening the annual general meeting of SCMP Group Limited to be held at Island Ballroom

Level Island Shangri-La Hotel Pacific Place Supreme Court Road Hong Kong on Monday 25 May 2009

at 1100 a.m is set out on pages to 11 of this circular Whether or not you are able to attend the meeting

you are requested to complete the form of proxy
enclosed with this circular in accordance with the instructions

printed thereon and return it to the Company at Morning Post Centre 22 Dai Fat Street Tai Po Industrial

Estate New Territories Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before the time

appointed for holding the meeting Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude you from

attending and voting in person at the meeting should you so wish

21 April 2009
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular the following expressions shall have the following meanings unless the

context requires otherwise

Annual General Meeting the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at

1100 a.m on Monday 25 May 2009 at Island

Ballroom Level Island Shangri-La Hotel Pacific

Place Supreme Court Road Hong Kong

AGM Notice the notice convening the Annual General Meeting as set

out on pages to 11 of this circular

Board the Board of Directors

Bye-Laws the Bye-Laws adopted by the Company on November

1996 as amended supplemented or modified from time to

time

Company SCMP Group Limited an exempted company

incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability the Shares

of which are listed on the Stock Exchange

Directors the directors of the Company

Latest Practicable Date 15 April 2009 being the latest practicable date prior to

the printing of this circular for ascertaining certain

information contained in this circular

Listing Rules the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

Stock Exchange for the time being in force

Securities and Futures the Securities and Futures Ordinance Chapter 571 of the

Ordinance Laws of Hong Kong

Shares the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital

the Company

Shareholders holders of Shares in issue

Stock Exchange The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited



DEFINITIONS

subsidiary means company which is for the time being and from

time to time subsidiary within the meaning of the

Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong Chapter 32 of the

Laws of Hong Kong or the Companies Act 1981 of

Bermuda as amended or the local companies law act

and/or ordinance where the subject company was

incorporated

Takeovers Code Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers



LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

SCMP Group Limited

SCMP/2J
Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

Stock Code 583

Directors

Non-executive Directors

Dr David Pang Chairman

Roberto Ongpin Deputy Chairman

Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng

Kuok Khoon Ean

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Hon Ronald Arculli

Peter Lee Ting Chang

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok Po

Wong Kai Man

Executive Director

Kuok Hui Kwong

To Shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam

Registered Office

Canons Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

Principal Place of Business

Morning Post Centre

22 Dai Fat Street

Tai Po Industrial Estate

New Territories

Hong Kong

21 April 2009

Introduction

Proposal for Grant of General Mandates

to Issue and Repurchase Shares

and

Notice of Annual General Meeting

The purpose of this letter is to provide information to Shareholders regarding the proposal

to grant the Directors general mandates to issue and repurchase Shares at the Annual General

Meeting Set out in Appendix to this letter is the AGM Notice convening the Annual General

Meeting at which Shareholders will be requested to consider and if they think fit adopt

resolutions relating to the grant of general mandates to issue and repurchase Shares and certain

other resolutions as ordinary businesses of the Annual General Meeting

For identification purpose only



LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

General Mandate to Issue Shares

At the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 26 May 2008 the Directors

were granted general mandate to allot issue and deal with additional Shares up to maximum

of 20 per cent of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of the passing of the

relevant resolution Such general mandate will cease to be effective at the conclusion of the

Annual General Meeting

As part of the special businesses of the Annual General Meeting Shareholders are asked

to consider and if thought fit to pass an ordinary resolution as set out in resolution in the

AGM Notice to renew the mandate to give the Directors power to allot issue and deal with

additional Shares with an aggregate nominal amount not exceeding 20 per cent of the share

capital of the Company in issue as at the date of the passing of the resolution Based on the

1560945596 Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date and assuming no Shares are

issued or repurchased before the Annual General Meeting the Company would therefore be

allowed under this mandate to issue maximum of 312189119 Shares

Such general mandate if approved by the Shareholders will be effective during the

period from the date of the passing of the resolution until the conclusion of the next annual

general meeting of the Company or the expiration of the period within which the next annual

general meeting of the Company is required by the Bye-Laws of the Company or any

applicable law to be held or the revocation or variation of the resolution by an ordinary

resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting whichever is the earliest Subject to

Shareholders granting the Directors the general mandate to repurchase Shares as described

below Shareholders are also asked to extend the general mandate to issue Shares by an amount

representing the aggregate nominal amount of the Shares repurchased by the Company under

the general mandate to repurchase Shares such that the amount of Shares so repurchased does

not exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company

in issue as at the date of the passing of the resolution

General Mandate to Repurchase Shares

At the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 26 May 2008 the Directors

were granted general mandate to repurchase Shares up to an aggregate nominal amount not

exceeding 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of Shares in issue as at the date of the

passing of the relevant resolution Such general mandate will cease to be effective at the

conclusion of the Annual General Meeting

As part of the special businesses of the Annual General Meeting Shareholders are asked

to consider and if thought fit to pass an ordinary resolution as set out in resolution in the

AGM Notice to renew the mandate to give the Directors power to repurchase Shares up to an

aggregate nominal amount not exceeding 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of

Shares in issue as at the date of the passing of the resolution Based on the 1560945596

Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date and assuming no Shares are issued or

repurchased before the Annual General Meeting the Company would therefore be allowed

under this mandate to repurchase maximum of 156094559 Shares



LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

In accordance with the Listing Rules Appendix to this letter serves as an explanatory

statement to provide Shareholders with all the information reasonably necessary to enable you

to make an informed decision on whether to vote for or against the resolution to be proposed

at the Annual General Meeting to renew the mandate to allow the Directors to repurchase

Shares

Re-election of Retiring Directors

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Companys Bye-Laws every Director shall retire

from office no later than the third annual general meeting after he was last elected or re-elected

If the number of Directors so retiring is less than one-third or the number nearest one-third

if the total number of Directors is not three or multiple of three of the Directors for the time

being then additional Directors who have been longest in office since their last election or

re-election shall retire from office by rotation to make up the shortfall so that one-third or the

number nearest one-third if the total number of Directors is not three or multiple of three

of the Directors will retire at each annual general meeting

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong and Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok Po were last re-elected in

2006 Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng was last re-elected in 2007 They will retire from office and

are eligible for re-election at the Annual General Meeting All the said Directors offer

themselves for re-election

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok Po is an Independent Non-executive Director of the

Company The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from Sir David

in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules Sir David has served in this capacity for

more than nine years The Directors are of the opinion that Sir David has been and continues

to be independent In reaching their opinion of Sir Davids independence the Directors were

satisfied that there are no relationships or circumstances which are likely to affect Sir Davids

judgement and any relationships or circumstances which could appear to do so were considered

not material The Directors recommend Shareholders to vote for the re-election of Sir David

as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company

Shareholders are requested to consider and vote on the re-election of Ms Kuok Hui

Kwong Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok Po and Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng separately and

individually under resolution of the AGM Notice The biographies and details of interests in

the Shares of the Directors to be re-elected at the Annual General Meeting are set out in

Appendix to this letter

Annual General Meeting

Set out in Appendix to this letter is the AGM Notice to convene the Annual General

Meeting to be held at Island Ballroom Level Island Shangri-La Hotel Pacific Place

Supreme Court Road Hong Kong on Monday 25 May 2009 at 1100 a.m to consider certain

resolutions as ordinary businesses of the Annual General Meeting In addition to this

Shareholders are requested to consider resolutions to in the AGM Notice relating to grant

of the general mandates to the Directors to issue and repurchase Shares which are proposed as

ordinary resolutions



LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Whether or not you are able to attend the Annual General Meeting you are

requested to complete the enclosed form of proxy and return the same to the Company at

Morning Post Centre 22 Dai Fat Street Tai Po Industrial Estate New Territories Hong

Kong in accordance with the instructions printed thereon The form of proxy is to be

received by the Company not later than 1100 a.m on Saturday 23 May 2009 Completion

and return of the form of proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting in person at

the Annual General Meeting should you so wish

Rights to demand poll on the proposed resolutions at the Annual General Meeting are

set out in Appendix to this letter

Recommendation

The Directors are of the opinion that all the proposed resolutions are in the best interest

of the Company and the Shareholders as whole and recommend Shareholders to vote in

favour of all the resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to adopt the

Audited Financial Statements and the Directors Report and Independent Auditors Report

ii to approve the payment of final dividend iii to re-elect the retiring Directors

iv to authorise the Board to fix Directors fee to re-appoint Auditor vi to grant general

mandate to issue Shares vii to grant general mandate to repurchase Shares and viii to

grant general mandate to add repurchased Shares to the share issue general mandate

Additional Information

Enclosed with this circular is copy of the 2008 Annual Report of the Company

Shareholders are advised to have regard to the information contained in this Annual Report in

arriving at their decision as to voting at the Annual General Meeting

Yours faithfully

David Pang

Chairman



APPENDIX NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

SCMP Group LimitedSCMP
Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

Stock Code 583

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of SCMP Group Limited will be

held at Island Ballroom Level Island Shangri-La Hotel Pacific Place Supreme Court

Road Hong Kong on Monday 25 May 2009 at 1100 a.m for the following purposes

To receive and consider the Audited Financial Statements and the Directors Report and

Independent Auditors Report for the year ended 31 December 2008

To approve the payment of final dividend

To re-elect the following retiring Directors

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong as Executive Director

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok Po as Independent Non-executive Director

Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng as Non-executive Director

To authorise the Board to fix Directors fee

To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as Auditor and authorise the Board to fix their

remuneration

As special business to consider and if thought fit pass the following resolution as an

ordinary resolution

THAT

subject to paragraph below the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant

Period as hereinafter defined of all the powers of the Company to allot issue and

deal with additional Shares or securities convertible into such Shares or options or

warrants or similar rights to subscribe for any Shares and to make or grant offers

agreements and options which would or might require Shares to be allotted and

issued be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved

For identification purpose only



APPENDIX NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

the approval in paragraph above shall authorise the Directors to make or grant

offers agreements and options during the Relevant Period which would or might

require Shares to be allotted and issued during and/or after the end of the Relevant

Period

the aggregate nominal amount of Shares allotted or agreed conditionally or

unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors pursuant to the approval in

paragraphs and above otherwise than pursuant to or in consequence of

Rights Issue as hereinafter defined or

ii the exercise of the conversion rights under the terms of any securities which

are convertible into Shares or

iii any option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for the

grant or issue to officers and/or employees of the Company and/or any of its

subsidiaries of Shares or rights to acquire Shares or

iv the exercise of rights of subscription under the terms of any warrants issued by

the Company or

any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for the allotment of Shares

in lieu of the whole or part
of dividend on Shares in accordance with the

Bye-Laws of the Company

shall not exceed 20 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital

of the Company in issue at the date of the passing of this resolution and

for the purpose of this resolution

Relevant Period means the period from the passing of this resolution until the

earliest of

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company following

the passing of this resolution and

ii the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of

the Company is required by the Bye-Laws of the Company or any applicable

law to be held and

iii the date on which the authority set out in this resolution is revoked or varied

by an ordinary resolution of the members of the Company in general meeting



APPENDIX NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Rights Issue means an offer of Shares or an offer of warrants options or other

securities giving rights to subscribe for Shares open for period fixed by the

Directors to holders of Shares on the Register of Members of the Company on

fixed record date and where appropriate the holders of other equity securities of the

Company entitled to be offered therein in proportion to their then holdings of such

Shares or other equity securities subject to such exclusions or other arrangements

as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional

entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of or

the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in any

territory outside Hong Kong

As special business to consider and if thought fit pass the following resolution as an

ordinary resolution

THAT

subject to paragraph below the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant

Period as hereinafter defined of all powers of the Company to repurchase its

Shares subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and/or requirements of

the Listing Rules be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved

the aggregate nominal amount of Shares which may be repurchased by the Company

pursuant to the approval in paragraph above during the Relevant Period should

not exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of Shares in issue at the

date of the passing of this resolution and the said approval shall be limited

accordingly and

for the purpose of this resolution Relevant Period means the period from the

passing of this resolution until the earliest of

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company following

the passing of this resolution and

ii the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of

the Company is required by the Bye-Laws of the Company or any applicable

law to be held and

iii the date on which the authority set out in this resolution is revoked or varied

by an ordinary resolution of the members of the Company in general meeting



APPENDIX NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

As special business to consider and if thought fit pass with or without amendments the

following resolution as an ordinary resolution

THAT subject to the passing of the resolutions and above the general mandate

granted to the Directors to exercise the powers of the Company to allot issue and deal

with additional Shares pursuant to resolution above be and is hereby extended by the

addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of Shares

repurchased by the Company under the authority granted pursuant to resolution above

provided that such amount of Shares so repurchased shall not exceed 10 per cent of the

aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of the

passing of this resolution

By Order of the Board

Vera Leung

Company Secretary

Hong Kong 21 April 2009

As at the date hereof the Board comprises

Non-executive Directors

Dr David Pang Chairman Mr Roberto Ongpin Deputy Chairman Tan Sri Dr Khoo

Kay Peng and Mr Kuok Khoon Ean

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Hon Ronald Arculli Mr Peter Lee Ting Chang Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok Po

and Mr Wong Kai Man

Executive Director

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong

Notes

member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to appoint proxy or proxies to attend

and vote in his or her stead and any such member who is holder of two or more shares in the Company is

entitled to appoint more than one proxy to attend and vote in his or her stead proxy need not be member

of the Company

The instrument appointing proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly

authorised in writing or if the appointor is corporation either under seal or under the hand of an officer or

attorney duly authorised

Where there are joint registered holders of any share any one of such persons may vote at the above meeting

either personally or by proxy in respect of such share as if he were solely entitled thereto but if more than

one of such joint holders be present at the meeting personally or by proxy that one of the said persons so

present whose name stands first on the register of members of the Company in respect of such share shall alone

be entitled to vote in respect thereof Several executors or administrators of deceased member in whose name

any share stands will for this purpose be deemed joint holders thereof

To be valid the form of proxy together with the power of attorney or other authority if any under which it

is signed or notarially certified copy thereof must be lodged at Morning Post Centre 22 Dai Fat Street Tai

Po Industrial Estate New Territories Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours

before the time appointed for the holding of the above meeting Completion and deposit of the form of proxy

will not preclude member from attending and voting in person at the above meeting if the member so wishes

10



APPENDIX NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday 19 May 2009 to Friday 22 May 2009

both dates inclusive during which period no transfer of shares will be effected All transfers accompanied by

the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Companys Hong Kong Branch Share Registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited of Room no 1712-1716 17th Floor Hopewell Centre

183 Queens Road East Hong Kong not later than 430 p.m on Monday 18 May 2009 so as to qualify for

the proposed final dividend and attending the above meeting

Members of the Company are advised to read the circular to shareholders dated 21 April 2009 which contains

information concerning the resolutions to be proposed in this notice

11



APPENDIX EXPLANATORY STATEMENT ON
THE SHARE REPURCHASE MANDATE

This explanatory statement relates to resolution proposed to be passed at the Annual

General Meeting which is an ordinary resolution to grant the Directors general mandate to

repurchase Shares through the Stock Exchange It contains all the information required

pursuant to Rule 10.061b of the Listing Rules to be given to the Shareholders to enable

them to make an informed decision on whether to vote for or against such ordinary resolution

Share Repurchase Proposal

Under the Listing Rules all the Shares proposed to be repurchased by the Company shall

be fully paid up All proposed repurchase of shares by company with primary listing on the

Stock Exchange must be approved in advance by an ordinary resolution either by way of

general mandate or by specific approval of specific transaction

As at the Latest Practicable Date the share capital of the Company in issue comprised

1560945596 Shares Assuming no Shares are issued or repurchased before the Annual

General Meeting and the ordinary resolution authorising the Directors to repurchase Shares is

passed at the Annual General Meeting up to 156094559 Shares representing 10 per cent of

the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of the passing of the resolution may

be repurchased by the Company during the period from the date of the passing of the resolution

until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company or the expiration of the

period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by the

Bye-Laws of the Company or any applicable law to be held or the revocation or variation of

the resolution by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting whichever is

the earliest

Reasons for Repurchase

The Directors believe that it is in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders

to have general authority from Shareholders to enable the Directors to repurchase Shares in

the market Such repurchase may depending on market conditions and funding arrangements

at the time lead to an enhancement of the net asset value of the Company and its assets and/or

its earnings per Share and will only be made when the Directors believe that such repurchase

will benefit the Company and the Shareholders

Funding of Repurchase

Under the Listing Rules repurchases of Shares by the Company must be funded out of

funds legally available for the purpose The Company may only apply funds legally available

for such purpose in accordance with its Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws and the

applicable laws of Hong Kong and Bermuda

It is presently proposed that any repurchase of Shares would be paid out of capital paid

up on the repurchased Shares the profits of the Company which would otherwise be available

for dividend the Companys share premium account and/or its contributed surplus account

12



APPENDIX EXPLANATORY STATEMENT ON
THE SHARE REPURCHASE MANDATE

In addition on the basis of the consolidated financial position of the Company as at

31 December 2008 being the date to which the latest published audited financial statements

of the Company have been made up the Directors consider that the exercise in full of the share

repurchase mandate might have material adverse impact on the working capital position of

the Company as compared with its position as at 31 December 2008 No repurchase would be

made in circumstances that might have material adverse impact on the working capital or

gearing position of the Company as compared with the position disclosed in the latest

published audited financial statements unless the Directors considered that such repurchases

were in the best interests of the Company notwithstanding such material adverse impact

General

None of the Directors nor to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable

enquiries any of their associates as defined in the Listing Rules has any present intention in

the event that the resolution to grant the Directors general mandate to repurchase Shares is

approved by Shareholders to sell any Shares to the Company

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange that so far as the same may be

applicable they will exercise the power of the Company to make repurchases pursuant to the

share repurchase mandate in accordance with the Listing Rules and the applicable laws of

Bermuda

If as result of the exercise of the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the share

repurchase mandate Shareholders proportionate interest in the voting rights of the Company

increases such increase will be treated as an acquisition and may give rise to an obligation to

make mandatory offer in accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code

As at the Latest Practicable Date Kerry Group Limited through its subsidiaries and

controlled corporations was interested in 1155061308 Shares which comprise both the

interests in 930061308 Shares and the interests in 225000000 Shares from equity

derivatives representing approximately 74.00 per cent of the total share capital of the

Company in issue In the event of the Directors exercising in full the power to repurchase

Shares under the mandate Kerry Group Limited would assuming that there is no change in

relevant facts and circumstances hold approximately 82.22 per cent of the total share capital

of the Company in issue assuming the said derivative interests in 225000000 Shares have

become fully vested Such increase would not give rise to an obligation to make mandatory

offer under Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code but would reduce the number of Shares held by the

public to less than 25% The Directors have no present intention to repurchase Shares to such

an extent which will result in the amount of Shares held by public being reduced to less than

25% of the total issued share capital of the Company

Save as aforesaid the Directors are not aware of any consequence that would arise under

the Takeovers Code and the Hong Kong Code on Share Repurchases in the event of the exercise

of the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the share repurchase mandate

13



APPENDIX EXPLANATORY STATEMENT ON
THE SHARE REPURCHASE MANDATE

No connected person as defined in the Listing Rules has notified the Company that he

has present intention to sell Shares to the Company or has undertaken not to do so in the

event that the Company is authorised to make repurchases of the Shares

Share Repurchases Made by the Company

The Company has made no repurchase of its Shares whether on the Stock Exchange or

otherwise in the past six months prior to the Latest Practicable Date

Share Price

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have traded on the Stock Exchange in

each of the 12 months prior to the printing of this explanatory statement were as follows

Highest Lowest

Year Month Traded Price Traded Price

HK$ HK$

2008 April December Note

2009 January
Note

February
Note

March 2.50 0.96

April up to Latest

Practicable Date 1.16 0.99

Note

The public float of the Company fell below 25% as from 25 February 2008 to 27 February 2009 Trading in

the Shares was suspended as from 27 February 2008 and was resumed at 230 p.m on March 2009 Details

of the public float arrangements have been disclosed in the Companys announcements dated March 2008

15 April 2008 July 2008 24 July 2008 10 September 2008 10 December 2008 March 2009 and March

2009

14



APPENDIX DETAILS OF DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

Biographies of and interests in Shares held by Directors proposed to be re-elected at the

Annual General Meeting

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong aged 31 an Executive Director joined the Board in February 2004

and became the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer in January 2009 She is

responsible for overseeing the management of the Groups businesses and operations Prior to

joining the SCMP Group in October 2003 Ms Kuok worked in investment banking She is also

director of The Post Publishing Public Company Limited listed in Thailand Ms Kuok is

graduate of Harvard University

As at the Latest Practicable Date Ms Kuok did not have any interest in any Shares within

the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance Ms Kuok has family/other interests in

23899988 shares of Kerry Group Limited the ultimate holding company of the Company

which include 1000000 shares held by the spouse of Ms Kuok and 22899988 shares held by

Ms Kuok through discretionary trust of which she is contingent beneficiary Ms Kuok has

an interest in 1252048 shares of Kerry Properties Limited an associated corporation of the

Company within the meaning of Securities and Futures Ordinance which held by Ms Kuok

through discretionary trust of which she is contingent beneficiary The spouse of Ms Kuok

has an interest in 400000 underlying shares of Kerry Properties Limited held under equity

derivatives within the meaning of Securities and Futures Ordinance

Ms Kuok has written service contract with the Company The appointment has no

specified term and the service contract may be terminated by either the Company or Ms Kuok

with one months notice The annual emolument payable by the Company to Ms Kuok for the

year ended 31 December 2008 was approximately HK$1983000 which was determined with

reference to the individuals performance and the Companys financial performance Under

Bye-Law 99 of the Company Ms Kuok will be subject to retirement by rotation and eligible

for re-election at the Companys annual general meeting every three years

Ms Kuok is the sister of Mr Kuok Khoon Ean Director of the Company Other than

the aforesaid Ms Kuok does not have any relationship with any other Directors senior

management substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company there is no

other information to be disclosed under rule 13.512 of the Listing Rules and there is no other

matter that needs to be brought to the attention of Shareholders

15



APPENDIX DETAILS OF DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok Po

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok Po GBM GBS OBE MA Cantab Economics Law

Hon DSc Imperial Hon DBA Napier Hon D.Hum.Litt Trinity USA Hon DSocSc

Lingnan Hon LLD Hong Kong Hon LLD Warwick Hon LLD Cantab FCA FCPA

FCPA Aust FCIB FHKIB FBCS CITP FCIArb JP Officier de LOrdre de la Couronne

Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity The Order of the Rising Sun Gold

Rays with Neck Ribbon Officier de Ia Legion dHonneur aged 70 an Independent

Non-executive Director joined the Board in April 1990 Sir David is Chairman and Chief

Executive of The Bank of East Asia Limited listed in Hong Kong and director of numerous

other companies in Hong Kong and overseas Sir David is Member of the Legislative Council

of Hong Kong He is the Chairman of The Chinese Banks Association Limited and the Hong

Kong Management Association He is also member of the Banking Advisory Committee and

the Council of the Treasury Markets Association Sir David is an independent director of China

Overseas Land Investment Limited COSCO Pacific Limited Guangdong Investment

Limited The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited The Hongkong and Shanghai

Hotels Limited PCCW Limited San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited and Vitasoy

International Holdings Limited all listed in Hong Kong He is director of AFFIN Holdings

Berhad and Criteria CaixaCorp S.A listed in Malaysia and Spain respectively Sir David was

an independent director of AviChina Industry Technology Company Limited and China

Merchants China Direct Investments Limited both listed in Hong Kong and director of Dow

Jones Company Inc listed on the New York stock exchange He was Member of the

Executive Council of Hong Kong

As at the Latest Practicable Date Sir David was interested in 4778000 Shares within the

meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance representing approximately 0.31% of the

share capital of the Company in issue The Company has given letter of appointment to

Sir David pursuant to which Sir David is appointed for term commencing on 25 May 2006

the date of his latest re-election as Director of the Company and ending at the conclusion of

the annual general meeting in 2009 Sir David volunteered to waive 30% of his Directors fee

and emolument for serving on the Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December 2008 In

2008 Sir David was entitled to Directors fee of HK$70000 and Directors emolument of

HK$70000 for serving on the Audit Committee which were approved by the Board of

Directors pursuant to the authority granted by the Shareholders at the Companys annual

general meeting Under Bye-Law 99 of the Company Sir David will be subject to retirement

by rotation and eligible for re-election at the Companys annual general meeting every three

years

Other than the aforesaid Sir David does not have any relationship with any Directors

senior management substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company there

is no other information to be disclosed under rule 13.5 12 of the Listing Rules and there is no

other matter that needs to be brought to the attention of Shareholders
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APPENDIX DETAILS OF DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng

Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng aged 70 Non-executive Director joined the Board in June

1994 Dr Khoo is the Chairman and Chief Executive of The MUI Group which is business

corporation with diversified operations in the Asia Pacific the United States of America

USA and the United Kingdom He is the Chairman and Chief Executive of Malayan United

Industries Berhad and MUI Properties Berhad both listed in Kuala Lumpur Dr Khoo is also

the Chairman of Laura Ashley Holdings plc listed in London Corus Hotels Limited

previously listed in London and Morning Star Resources Limited listed in Hong Kong He

is also director of Pan Malaysian Industries Berhad listed in Kuala Lumpur and The Bank

of East Asia Limited listed in Hong Kong Dr Khoo is trustee of the Regent University

Virginia USA and board member of Northwest University Seattle USA He also serves as

Council Member of the Malaysian-British Business Council the Malaysia-China Business

Council and the Asia Business Council

As at the Latest Practicable Date Dr Khoo did not have any interest in any Shares within

the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance The Company has given letter of

appointment to Dr Khoo pursuant to which Dr Khoo is appointed for term commencing on

28 May 2007 the date of his latest re-election as Director of the Company and ending at the

conclusion of the annual general meeting in 2010 Dr Khoo volunteered to waive 30% of his

Directors fee for the year ended 31 December 2008 In 2008 Dr Khoo was entitled to

Directors fee of HK$70000 which was approved by the Board of Directors pursuant to the

authority granted by the Shareholders at the Companys annual general meeting Under

Bye-Law 99 of the Company Dr Khoo will be subject to retirement by rotation and eligible

for re-election at the Companys annual general meeting every three years

Other than the aforesaid Dr Khoo does not have any relationship with any Directors

senior management substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company there

is no other information to be disclosed under rule 13.5 12 of the Listing Rules and there is no

other matter that needs to be brought to the attention of Shareholders
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APPENDIX RIGHT TO DEMAND POLL

Bye-Law 70 of the Bye-Laws sets out the procedures by which Shareholders may demand

poll

At any general meeting resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on

show of hands unless poll is demanded before or on the declaration of the results of the

show of hands or on the withdrawal of any other demand for poll poll may be demanded

by

the chairman of the meeting

ii at least three Shareholders present in person or by duly authorised corporate

representative or by proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the meeting

iii any Shareholder or Shareholders present in person or by duly authorised corporate

representative or by proxy and representing not less than one-tenth of the total

voting rights of all the Shareholders having the right to vote at the meeting or

iv any Shareholder or Shareholders present in person or by duly authorised corporate

representative or by proxy and holding shares in the Company conferring right to

vote at the meeting being shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal

to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the shares conferring that

right

Unless poll be so demanded and the demand is not withdrawn declaration by the

chairman of the meeting that resolution has on show of hands been carried or carried

unanimously or by particular majority or lost and an entry to that effect in the book

containing the minutes of the proceedings of the Company shall be conclusive evidence of the

fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour or against such

resolution

18
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